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INDEPENDENT AL.IDITORS' REPORTS

To the Honorable Mayor and
Mernbers of the Municipal Legislature
Autonomous Municipality of Caguas

We have audited the accompanying financial statements ofthe gov€rnmental activities, the business-type

activities, each major fund and the agglegate remaining fund information of the Autonomous

Municipality of caguas (the Municipality) as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010, which

collectively comprise the Municipality's basic financial statements as listed in the table ofcontents. These

financial statements are the responsibility of the Municipality's management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards requirc that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether the financial staternents are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test

basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Al audit also includes

assessilg the accbunting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as

evaluatiig the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable

basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financiat statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the

respective financial position ofthe governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund"

ani the aggregate remaining fund information ofthe Autonomous Municipality of Caguas as of Jule 30,

2010, anJ-the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicablg thereof for the

fiscai year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

The Management's Discussion and Analysis and budgetary comparison inforrration for the general fund,

as listed i-n the table of contents, are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are

supplementary information required by the Accounting Principles Generally Accepted in the United

Staies of arnerica. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of
ma agement regarding the m;thods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary

infoniation. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

December 30, 2010
San Juan, Puerto Rico

Stamp No. E282 was affixed
to the original ofthis report.
Licens€ No. 88 Exp. December 1, 2011

650 I1r!noz Rivera Ave.. Suite 502. San Juan, PR 00918-4149'P0 Box

Phone 787 641.9801 ' Fax 787 641.9809

Pse-

195607, Hato Rey Station.
. www. pa rissicpa. c o.n

*,@
San Juan. PR 00919-5607



Autonomous Municipalig of Caguas
Managemenl's Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2010

To the Citizens and the Municipal Legislature
of the Municipality of Caguas

As management of the Autonomous Municipality of Caguas (hereafter the

Municipality), we offer readers of the Municipality's financial statements this

narrative overview and analysis ofthe financial activities ofthe Municipality for the

fiscal year ended June 30, 20i0. Certain reclassifications have been made to the

prior year amount within the Management Discussion and Analysis to conform

current year prgsentation. We encourage readers to read the information presented

here in conjunction with the basic financial statements.

Financial Highlights

o The assets of the Municipality exceeded its liabilities at the close of the fiscal year by

$387,520,392(net as s ets).

o The government,s total assets, in the Govemment Activities increased by $5,662,491, and

government's liabilities increased in by $18,395,197. These changes resulted in a decrease in total

net assets by $(12,732,706) (net (decrease) in net assets $(15,952,223) plus prior period adjustment

$3,219,s17 ).

o As ofthe close ofthe current fiscal year, the Municipality's governmental funds reported combined

ending fund balances of $47,220,106, as restated after a total and combined net increase of
$10,8s9,0s1

o The Municipality's total general long{erm debt increased by $17,249,172 during the current fiscal

year. The key factor to this increase was S32,025,000 ofspecial loans used mostly for infrastructure

development.

Overvie$' of lhe Financial Statenents

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to The Municipality's basic financial

statements. The Muaicipality's basic financial statements consist of three components; 1) government

wide financial staternents, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the hnancial statements. The basic

financial statements present two different views of the Municipality tkough the use of govemment-wide

statements and fund financial statements. In addition to the basic financial statements, this report contains

other supplemental information that will enhance the reader's understanding of the financial condition of
the Municipality.

I



Autonomous Municipality of Caguas
Management's Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2010

Detail

:

Required Components of Annual Financial Report

ffi@ffi
Summary

Basic Finaneiol Statemen*

The first two statements @ages 17 through 19) in the basic fimncial statements are the Government-
wide Financial Stttenetrts. They provide both short and long-term information about the Municipality's
fimncial status.

The next statements (Pages 22 through 25 ard 23 and 24) are the Fund Financial StrteDetrts. These
statements focus on the activities of the individual parts of the Municipality's government. These
statements provide more detail than the government-wide statements. There are three parts to tle Fund
Financial Statements: 1) the governmental funds statements; 2) the budgetary comparison statements;
and 3) the proprietary firnd statements.

The next section of the basic financial statem€nts is tle notes to the financial statements. The notes to
the financial statements explain in detail some ofthe data contained in those statements-

Govemment-Wide Financitl Staternents

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide the reader with a broad overview of
the Municipality's finances, similar in format to a financial staternent of a private-sector business. The
government-wide statements provide short and long-term information about the Municipality's financial
status as a whole-
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Autonomous Municipality of Cagaas
Management's Discassion and Analysis

June 30, 2010

Thrc Statement of Net Assets presents information on all of the Municipality's assets and liabilities, with

the difference bitween the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may

serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Municipality is improving or

deteriorating.

T\e Statement of Activities presents information showing how the Municipality's net assets. changed

during me most iecsnt fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event

glvin! Ase to the change occurs, regardlesis of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and

!*pd.o -" ."port"d in-this statemenl for some items that will reult in cash flows in future fiscal periods

(ei., uncollected taxes and eamed but unused vacation leave). The Statement of Activities is focused on

boti'tn" g.o.r and net cost of larious activiti€s (including governmental, business{ype, and component

"rir 
ir -il. This is intended to summarize and simplifi the reader's aralysis of the revenues and costs of

various Municipality's activities and the degree to which activities are subsidized by genoal revenues'

The govemment-wide statements are divided into two categories: 1) governmental activities; and 2)

bu.ifos-typ" activities. The governmental activities include most of the Municipality's basic services

such as priblic safety, parks and recreatioq and general administration. Property tax€s and state and

federal grant funds hnance most of these activities. The business-type activities ar€ those tlEt the

rra*i"r""rity charges directly to users to provide the service. These include community Development

Bank and Multi-tenant fund.

The government-wide financial statements are included from pages 17 thLrough 19 of this report.

Fand Financial Statcmerr,s

The fund financial statements provide a more detailed look at the Municipality's most significant

activities. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that

fr"r" U"* segregated fol .poiic activities or objectives. The Municipality, like all 
_other 

governmental

entiti€s in the*C;'mmonw*lth of Pooto Ri"o, uses fund accounting to ensure and reflect compliance (or

non+ompliance) with finance-related legal requirements, such as the General Statutes or the

u*l"iputity', todget ordinance. All of the funds of the Municipality can be divided into two categories:

governmental funds and proprietary funds.

Governmentat Funds - Governmental funds are used to account for those functions reported as

sovernmstrtal activities ln the gov€rnmsnt-wide financial statements. Most of the Municipality's basic

:;;;;;;J;J f*; iovernmental tunds. These tunds focus on how assets can readilv be

converteA into cash flow in ant out, and what monies are left at year-end that will be available for

spending in the next Year.

Govemmentalfundsarereportedusinganaccountingmethodcalledmodifedaccrualbasisof
;;;;;;;;; This method i.'ut* t ro*i' has a current financial resources focus. As a result, the

g"r."-"it"f fund frnancial staiements give the reader a detailed short-ierm view that helps him or her

i"to.-io" iituo" are more or less finaJcial r€sources available to finance the Municipality's programs'

TherelationshipbetweengovemmentactivitiesGeportedinthestatementofNetAssetsandthe
statement of Activities) ana gorn"rn-ental funds is described in a reconciliation that is a part of the fund

financial statements (see page 22 and 25).



Autonomous Municipality of Caguas
Management's Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2010

The Municipality adopts an annual budget for its General Fund, as required by the General Statutes. The
budget is a legally adopted document that incorporates input from the citizeos of the Municipality, the
man,gement of the Municipality, and the decisions of the Municipal trgislature about which services to
provide and how to pay for them. It also authorizes the Municipality to obtain funds from identified
sources to finance these current p€riod activities. The budgetary statement provided for the General Fund
demonstrates how well the Municipality complied with the budget ordinance and whether or not the
Municipality succeeded in providing the services as planned when the budget was adopted. The
budgetary comparison statement uses the budgetary basis of accounting and is presented using the same
format, language, and classifications as the legal budget document. The statement shows four columns:
1) the original budget as adopted by the municipal legislature; 2) the final budget as amended by the
municipal legislator; 3) the actual resources, charges to appropriations, and ending balances in the
General Fund; and 4) the difference or variance between the final budget and the actual resources and

charges (see page 26).

koprietary Funds - The Municipality has one kind of proprietary fi:rlrd. Enterprise Fzzds are used to
report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial
statements. The Municipality uses enterprise funds to account for its Government Development Bank
activity and for its multi-tenant operations. These funds are the same as those separate activities shown in
the businesstype activities in the Statement ofNet Assets and the Statements ofRevenues, Expenses and

Changes in Net Assets (see Pages 27 through 29).

Notes to the Finmcial Stltements - The notes provide additional inforrnation that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to
the fir:ancial statefirents stad on pages 31 through 68 of this report.

Governmett-l itk Finaacial Analysis

As noted earlisr, net assets may serve over time as one useful indicator of a government's financial
condition. The assets of the Municipality exceeded liabilities by $358,218,122 as of June 30, 2010' The

Mudcipality's net assets decreased by $12,732,706 (net (decrease) in net assets of $(15,952,223) plus

prior period adjustment $3,219,517) for the fiscal year ended June 3, 2010.

One of the largest portions ($370,652,456) reflects the Municipality's investment in capital assets (e.g.

land, buildings, infrastructwg and equipment), less any related debt still outstanding that '\ as issued to
acquire those items. The Municipality uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens;

consequentln these assets are not available for future spendiry. Although the Municipality's investment

in its capital assets is reported net ofthe outstauding related deb! the resources needed to repay that debt

must be provided by other sources, since the capital assets cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. An
additional portion of the Municipality's net assets ($38,934,117) represents resourc€s that are subj€ct to

external restrictions on how they may be used. The re,lnaining balance is unrestricted'



- Autonomous Municipality of Caguas
Management's D iscttss ion and Ana ly si s

June 30, 2010

The Municipality's Net Assets

Governrentd
Activities

2010 lM m10 2IXD 2010 M

Curftnt ad orher asse6 $ l2gIi{,:,73g 123,018,?q' 3,450,026 2,3'13919 132A52J65 lzfin'?$
capiEl assds 53EJ62,391 539,083,843 8'nZ,E14 17,155JS5 fi21E5265 556239228

Totalassehffi7J65,ln66r,lIr,63rZqJ54'I48nP1!%697,519278684100,135

curEnt liabilities 75,614,859 73,626,080 37?,038 1749X 1590\8n 73'801'070

orirer liabilitia 233932,14s 2t7,s25,73t 74,84 74,840 234ry'?!? 2t7 
'ffi,57t

Toral tiabilities m"ilt,oot 29il51,11 451,878 249,E30 3ttg,998,88r 291,441fi1

Busireset pe

Acivities Iotel

Net as$s:

InY€$od iII capital assds, net of

relatert &bt 370,652,456 387,689121 8,n2,814 17,155J65 394,375J30 401,844,806

Restrictcd 38,934,117 16,17l,912 3t,934117 16'171912

Unr*ticted 61,368,451) (32,910,50, 5,s?9J96 4,69228t (45'7810.D Q82t8?21\

Total nd ass€s $ 35t218J22 3?0'950.8,t 29)02270 21,847,66 387,5203y2 392,,198,4%



Autonomous Municipalily of Caguas
Management's Discassion and Analysis
June 30, 2010

The Municipality's Changes In Net Assets

GovEmm.ntal

A.tivitie.
Borima-typ.

Activitiet
2.010 2010

Rev€nu6:

Progran revenues:

Ch.rges for services

Op€raling gmlts and contnbulions

Ceilal gr& s ard crdributions
G eral revdrr€s:

Prop€rty taxes

Volun€ of business tax€s

Sales hxes
Ini€rgov6nm€,|tal

IntBEsl and inl/Estll€'{ income

Gain on djsposal ofcapilal assds

Other

Total r€venu€s

Eper8€s:
Ga€ral govdnm€t

Public saf€ty

Public works

Cultural andrE raalioo

Heal6 and welfare

Ecommic developm€nt

Hot6ing
Sanitation aad €nvironmental

Educatiur

D€bt sorvice

lnterest

Irss on dbposal of r4,ilz.l assd

CommudilyDevelopma Bank

Moltilenant

Tolal rxp€nses

Ird€ase (defi€rse) in n€l assets beforE trmsfer
Trdnsfei

NeI incxEas€ (decrease) in nd ass€ts

Nd essets, b€girning as previously Rponed

Prior p6iod aqiusED€0ts

Nd asse6, begimring as r€siat€d

Nd asseh, endins

145,570 2,33E,339 6,155J93

13,176474 32,729207

- 4,264,105 2,736,340

55,698,431 452$224
23,060,087 11417,5M

- 19,164,329 19,6s3,668

\272,t51 10,902, 9
16951 69,719 2,105,345

- 1,52&317 (44,589)

s 2,081244

33,116,474

4,264,705

55,698,411

23,060,087

19,46/,,99

1\2n,151
682,234

5,809,023

32,n9,201
2,736,v0

452N,224
31,411,5M

19,653,668

10,902, 9

2,088,394

(44,589)

257,W5

17,485

1,528,317

r,075,040 16,69 (435,919) t,09t,?39 (200,328)

150,n4,69s 156,787,483 r,819,5% (72,398) t52,594,291 156,715,085

40,114,43 43,47,060 40,414,021 43,40?,060

l\n1,689 9,965,172 ll,?21,689 9,965,172

23,5t7,464 31,W,201 - 23,511,464 31,999201
5,310,329 1,429,2U 5,310,329 11292U

19,589,y0 t9,c6'2,734 19,58q340 19,062,t34
9,563,934 9,675,386 - 9,563,934 9,675,386

12,034,?62 t 8,836,679 1L034,862 18,836,6?9

14,58,m5 15,092,658 - t4,573,005 15,092,658

15,@1,577 t4,@1,933 t5,691,577 t4,69t953

8,6u,307 9,448,175 8,611,307 9A48,175

- 
- 

,*,rru 6t4,85t 240-,526 6t4,851

_ _ 119,062 343,960 _W-
16t,a27,530 179,608,3m 584,486 t ,9t3 161,612,016 180102115

(10,252,815) (22,820,819) 1,235,110 (86631t) (9,017,ns\ Q3,68t,130\
(5,4e,388) __gA4gI 5,6ee,388 3,e82,084 _ _

(15,952,n3) Q6,,.J2,9o3't 6,9u,498 3,115,773 (9,0n,n, 03,687,130)

370,950,828 4$,106,97 2t,8/t,ffi I&3t5,590 3y2,79Ei4% 421A92,587

3,219,s11 (5,353,266) 520,106 146,303 3,139,623 __(!,006,%:).
1t4,170,y5 39t,t51,nt 22,361,1n l&731,893 39653& 7 416,485,A4

t 358,218,122 370,950,828 293m,210 21,U7,ffi 187,520,192 192,798,494



Autonomous Municipality of Caguas
Management's Discussion and hnlysis
June 30, 2010

Governmental actffiies - Governmental activities decreased the Municipality's net assets by
$12,732,706, (net (decrease) in net assets $(15,952,223) plus prior period adjustment 53,219,517),
thereby accounting for almost the total reduction in the net assets of the Municipality. Key elerrents of
this decrease are as follows:

Total revenues decreased 3.86% over prior year reported.

o Decrease in volume ofbusiness taxes

o Decrease on interest on investment income,

As is of cornmon knowledge, the world economy has undergone excruciating conditions in the 2009-2010

reporting year, and Caguas was not immune to it. As is repoded in this statement, total revenues

decreased in the Municipality of Caguas across most segments. Additionally, given the reduction in
interest rates in the banking sector, the municipality of Caguas was also affected with lower retums on its

bank deposits.

o Total expenses decreased by 10.37% over prior year

Major decreases in expense includes: general government, public works, housing and, cultural and

recreation. In response to economic indications pointing to lower revenues, the municipality of Caguas

adopted precautionary m@sures. A plan of cost reduction was implemented. As a result, the Municipality
was successful in lowering the expenses of its operations. Major decreases in expenses were achieved in:
general government, public works, housing, cultural and recreation. Despite the reductions, the

Municipality found it pertinent to increase investments in public safety and education.

o Major increase in expenses includes: public safety and education.

Thb space hos been intentionally left in blank



Autonomous Municipality of Caguas
Matagement's Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2010

Rey€,rues by Sowce - Govetu',rentol Aflivlfies

Property taxes
36%

Oth€r taxes
30%

Operatint
grants and

contributions
2!%

1S

Business-type ectivities: Business-type activities increased the Municipality's net assets by $1,891,994

amortizing the decrease in the government's net assets.

n(*,e B by Source - Sustnetsrype Acavil€s

Charges for
services

t4%

Gain on sale of
capitalessets

ff{?6

Capitalgrants
and

3%

Other

Other



Autonomous Municipalig of Caguas
Manogement's D isctts sio n and Analy sis

June 30, 2010

o Total revenues increased by $1,891,994 over prior year reported.

o Decrease in charge for services by $89,475

o During the fiscal year the Municipality sold certain capital assets at a gain of$1,528,317

o Increase on otha income by $453,152

o Total expenses decreased by $209,427 over prior year

o Major decreases iu expense include: Community Dwelopment Bank'

o Major increase in experses includes: Multitenant.

Financial Ana$sis ol rte Manicipality's Furuls

As noted earlier, the Municipality uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with

finance-related legal requirements.

Governmentrl Funds - The focus of The Municipality's gov€rnmental funds is to provide information

on near-term hflows, outflows, and balances of usable resources. Such information is useful in assessing

the Municipality's financing requirements. Specifically, urreserved fund balance can be a useful measure

ofa government's net resources available for spending at the end ofthe fiscal year'

At June 30, 2010, the gov€rnmental funds of the Municipality reported a combined funi balance of

$47,220,106, as r€stated. This amount r€presents an increase of forty three percent ovgr last year. The

primary reason for this increase was increase of excess of revenues and other financing sourc€s over

op-dit*o and other financing uses of $10,859,051 and a prior period adjustment of $3,219,517 (see

note l5 ofthe accompanying flnancial statemerfs).

This swce has been intentionally left in bloak
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Autonomous Municipality of Caguas
Ma agement's Discussion and Analysis

June 30, 2010

General Fund Budgetsry Highlights: During the fiscal year, the Municipality revised tht budget on

several occasions. Cteraity, Uuagl anendme;ts fall into one of three categories: 1) ameniments made

io adjust the estimates thai are uJea to prspare the origrnal budget ordinance once exact information is

u*ifiUf"; 2) amendments made to recognizi new funding amouis fiom external sources, such as Federal

-a st"t" grants; and 3) increases in 
-appropriations ai a result of cash surplus from prior pei iod to

;rpph-;ilpr;l projects 6arling and general government activities. During the fiscal year ended as of

June 30, 2010 no amendments to the General Fund were made.

The Municipalig's Budga AaivilY

Original Amendments Transfers

Resources:

ProPerty taxes

Volume of business taxes

Sales hx€s
Fines and penalties

Int€r€st and investment income

Intergovemmental

Ucenses and permits

Parking lot fees

Rent and other resources

Amounts available for appropriation

Expenditures charged to appropriations:

Culture and recreation

Economic and social dweloPment

Education

General govemment

Health and welfare

Housing

Sanitation and envimnmental

Public safety

Public works

Total charges to aPproPriations

Excess of resources over appropriations

$ 33,506,086

26,000,000

17,200,000

210,000

1,500,000

8,M9,674

5,011,000

207,090

33,506,086

26,000,000

17,200,000

210,000

1,500,000

8A49,674

5,011,000

207,090

14,587,078

106,670,928

6,844,989

6,r&,489
3,174,688

37,190,320

12,169,978

976,709

16,108,275

11,245,776

12,595,7M

106,670,928

s-

(616,732)

366,337

(s7,094)

3,175,673

(4s3,s73)

(98,445)

(r,327,071\

(584,318)

(4M,777)

14,587,078

106,670,928

6,228,257

6,530,826

3,t17,s94
40,365,993

11,916,405

878,2&
14,781,m4

10,661,458

12,190,927

106,670,928

11



Autanomous Municipality of Caguas
Management's Discussion and Analysis

June i0, 2010

o Actual budgetary transactions generated an excess of resources over appropriations of $4,287,496

due to the following:

o A decrease in resources over of budget by $926,620 mainly in other rent and other resources.

o A decrease in appropriations by $5,214,116 mainly in a reduction of appropriations in general

govemment and Public works.

koprietary Funds - The Municipality's proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in

the 
'governmenfwide statements but in more detail. Unrestricted net assets of the Community

Deveiopment Bank at the end of the fiscal year amounted to $3,068,774, and those of the Multi+enant

Fund equaled $2,510,622. The total increase (decrease) in net assets for both funds was $(675,478) and

$7,60g,b76, respectively. Other factors concerning the flr:ances of these funds have already been

addressed in the discussion of the Municipality's business-type activities'

Capital Assa and Debt Adminbration

Capital assets - The Municipality's capital assets for its governmental and business - type activities as of
rune ro, zoto, torals $562,485,265 (net of accumulated depreciation). These assets include buildings,

roads and bridges, lan4 machinery and equipment, park facilities, and vehicles'

Major capital asset transastions during the year include:

o Addition of construction in progress for infrastructure, buildings and facilities

o land acquisition zmd improvements

o Purchased new equipment and vehiclc for the Municipality as a whole

. Disposal ofold equipment

This space has been inwntionally lfi in blank
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- Autonomous Manicipality of Caguas
! Management's Discussion and Analysis

June 30, 2010

The Municipality's Capital Assets
(na of depreciarton)

Goverunenhl Buxinss-tyle

Activiliu Aaivitie
2010 m09 20t0 2w9 2010 2009

\ Croihl asseb not beiry d€mciat€d

laul and improvement $ 47,310,740 46,577,t45 393j i54 3,937 iy 51248194 j0J14,700\-
kmstruction rD FWrcs 36,164,509 33,U1fl9 4,673,329 41,037,838 33,MtgZ9

Cmihl assets rct of deprcciatiotr

* Facilitic aad irymwmenls 26,846,079 25,132265 ?6,w079 25,7!,265

.-' Buildings and inprovemenn 118,405,62 113J60,130 15,110,056 13217,363 133J15,72S 126i77,493

Roads and strcet 29t325,fi2 300,79j,438 Zgtl,ZS,fiZ 300,795,438

' fquipmen and vehicls 16,t48274 U35 768 15,0j7,163 t6,t4g,Uz
v" Tdl nd of dqreciatioa 451,612,581 456,036,10? l5, l,99l l32l8,l3t 4{f,,n4,n K9154238

Totalc4ihlassebrctofdeFcciatim $ l]!,76312L __539!qq!_ __8n2fi4_ 17,155,685 50155265 556ilg,528

'- Additional information on the Municipality's capital assets can be found in note 6 of the Basic Financial
v Statem€nts.

Major additions to constructions in progress (disbursements of more than $800,000) as of June 30, 2010v are as follows:

Project Amount
Interactive Science and Technology Center

Bo Cailaboncito Commudty Center

Downtolur Infractructure's Betterment
Roads maintenance

Jose Gautierre Benitez's Residential Remodeling

Betterments to Degetau Avenue

$ 5,t43,297
1,068,912

t,041,240
954,394

877,109

801,853

$ 9,886,805

v Long-term Debt - As of June 30, 2010, The Municipality had total debt outstanding of $235,192,677 all
. ofwhich is debt backed by the full faith and credit of the Municipality.
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Autonomous Municipality of Cagaas
Mdnagement's Discussion and Analysis

June 30, 2010

The Municipelity's Outstanding Debt
General Obligation Bonds

Govcrnmental

Activities

Businers-type

Activities Totel

2010 2009 2010 2m9

Gureral obligation bonds

Federal loans and notes

Special loals

Total

$ 211,883,677 115,180,680 74,U0 224,16s 211958,517 115'404,845

5,470,000 6J55,000 5J70'000 6J55'000

17,839,000 96,0s8J00 

- 
- 

17,832'000 96'058{W

$ n tg14677 Ut,lgt,tto 74,U0 n4J65 23s267'517 218'018'345:

The Municipality,s total debt increased by $17,249,172 (7.917o) dwing the past fiscal year, primarily due

to $32,025,000 issued in special loans for infraskucture development'

The Commonwealth of Puerto fuco limits the amount of general obligation debt that a unit of gov€rnment

can issue to 10 percent of the total assessed value of taxable prop€rty located within tbat.governrnent's

boundaries. on 
-March 

2009, the Government of Puerto enacted the Special Act Declaring a state of

Fiscal Emergency and Establishing an Integrated Fiscal Stabitizing Plan to Save the Credit ofPuerto Rico

eutfic rawi). imong otho things, this Law introduced a new way to view the Real Property valuation

(see note 7 of the accompanying financial siatements).

Also, the Municipality has a Municipal Redemption Fund composed of .2% of the .5% of the total sales

tax of t.SZ", to support the debt service fund capacity. This fun4 in addition to other variables, is used to

calculate the Muni"iputity'. borrowing powa within a specific timeframe. The Municipality's borrowing

margin for the audit& y*. *u. upp.o*i-ortely $29,000,000 with a conkibution to the fund (in the audited

year) of approxirnately $2,660,009.

Additional information regarding the Municipality's long+erm debt can be found in note 7 beginning on

page 50 ofthis audited financial report.

Summary of Local EconomY

The Municipality of caguas ('caguas") was founded in 1775 and is fifth largest of the municipalities of

the commonwealth of puerto Ri; Ghe 'cornmonwealth" or "Pu€rto Rico") in terms of population' Its

boundaries encompass an area of approxirnately 59.07 square miles, *6 ngcol.ling to the 2009 Puerto

Rico community s,[vey the population of caguas was 143,274. Caguas is bounded on-the North by the

frafu"ipulitio of S"n ju urd r-jitto Alto, on the South 
_by 

the Municipalities of Cayey and San

Loret-;, on the East, by the Municipalities of Gurabo and San torenzo, and on the West by the

Municipalities of Aguas Buenas and Ci&a.

The largest employers in caguas are the state gov€rnm€nt, the Municipal government,. Avon, wal-Man'

Sam,s 
-Club 

-a a-igo Supermarket retail ;hai4 K-mart Corp., Costco, Centennial (now AT&T),

Walgreen's and HIMA-San Pablo Hospital.
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Autonomous Municipality of Caguas
Managenont's Discassion and Analysis
June 30, 2010

The Crty,s economy has an indusfy composition somewhat similar to the rest of the island's largest

Municipalities. In the 1960s textile;s manufacturing and agriculture made up the larg€st amount of the

local economy, but by the mid seventies the manufacturing share of anployment had declined to a lower

percentage.

Major Industries and Services (including government)

Government Services: The governmental service is the largest source of employment in the

Municipality, accounting for the largest amount of the cMlian ernployment in FY/10. This sector had a

moderate grow at city livel but it iJbeing reduced at the State level since the fiscal year as required by

Iaw 7. G-overnmenisector includes a divasity of employments areas such as education, electric power

service, water supply, police, public works, culture and req€atioq h€altt! legal service ald others.

Hea1th Services: As a major regional medical ce er, the medical services industry is one of the largest

employers in the area. It inchaes HMA-San Pablo Hospital and the former Regional Hospital, now

*-ed[ Suo Juan Bautista operated by the private sector. These facilities provide primary, secondary and

t 
"tlu.y 

tt*ttt services to ihe residents oi C"guas and adjacent small towns, and are responsible for

establbhing and developing strategies and programs designed to promote healtlq prevenl diseas€s,

p--ote oily dAection and diagnosis of health problems, promote adequate treatment of health problems

and rehabilitatioa services.

caguas is included in the commonwealth's Health Reform program. The commonwealth's. Health

n"Fo.- p.og*. consists of providing comprehensive health insurance coverage for qualifring low

income residents of Puerto Rico tkoug[r a managed care systern. Und€r the Health Reform program, the

Gov€rnment of Puerto Rico selects, tkough a bidding system, one private health insurance company in

each of several desigDated regions of Puerto Rico and pays such insurauce company the insurance

pr".io." for each el-igible tenenciary within such regiol The municipalities pay the Government of
'Po."to 

Ri"o * 
".ourt 

mandated by law, to cover part of the inswance premium paid by theGovernment

of Puerto Rico for its citizens. CagLs participates-in this program not only as a health provido, tkough

its facilities, but also as an Indefendent Provider Association @A) sharing with insurers the health

insurance risk.

The health services industry had been one of the fastest growing sect'ors in caguas' During fiscal year

2010, HIMA San pablo Hospital ahnost completed the construction of a modern medical facility for

cancer treabnent, parking lot facilities and a new medical offrce building'

Trede (retail tnd wholesale)l The trade sector is the strongest growing sector h ft:-q?.Many major

nationai chains such as wal-Mart, costco, walgreen's, Best Bun Home Depot, and ofiice Depot have

expanded into the area, helping maintain relatively stable levels of consumer spendi:rg'

Construction: The sonstruction in the private sector, an important source for the economic growth in

caguag continue its declining pattern during 2010 as well as thrc.rest ofthe island and the contineltal us'

B.iloy-"nt -a ,.os. ,"""iftr io co*trucdon continued declining for 2010 in terms of new projects and

housing developments'
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, Mrnagement's Discassion and Analysis

- June 30,2010

Autonomous Municipality of Caguas

. Govemmental initiative such as "Nuevo Edificio Centro de Gobierno", "Centro Interactivo de Ciencias,

Matemritica y Tecnologia (C3Tec)' and other ilfrastructure development mentioned abovg had to

. maintain this economic sector. However, the inventory ofnew homes rernains almost unsold at year end.

€ The total revenue of construction permits decreased in comparison to prior year'

udget Highlights for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2010

Governmental Activities: Property taxes ftanefiting from residential and industrial developments), city

tax, and revenues from permits;nd fees are expected to lead the increase in revenue projections (without

\ considering any inter-fund transfer). The Municipality will use these increases in revenues to finance

bG*"6 expenditures in the General Fund are expected to maintail unchanged as per prior year results.

- The-largest increments are in employee compensation, including funding compensation and benefits

adjustments, Capital Outlays and Public Works.

equests Jor Infomation

This report is designed to provide an overview of the Municipality's finances for those with an interest in
' ttis area. Questio-ns "on 

ooirg any of the information found in this report or requests for additional

- information should be directed io: Municipality of Caguas, Office of the Mayor, P.O. Box 907' Caguas'

Puerto Rico, 00726-0907, or httD://www.caquas.eov.Dr'
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Autonomous Municipality of Caguas
Satements of Net Assex
As ofJune 30, 2010

Governmental

Activitiet

Business-Type

Activitier Totrl

Assets

Cu[€nt assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash with fiscal agent

hvestm€nts

Accounts receivable:

Volume ofbusioess ta& net

Sales taxes, net

Intergovemn€ntal

Federal gmnts

License and permits, net

R€nt and utilities, tret

Other accounts

Intemal bolancc

Ihfened debt issued costs

Total curcnt ass€ts

Non-cun€nt ass€ts:

Restricted cash and cash equivalents commercial banks

Restricted cash and cash equivalents in govemmental banks

Investm€ots

loans rtceivable, net

Capital assas not being depreciated

Capital assas, na of accumulated depreciation

Total non+unent assets

Total assets

4:tw,r4s
69,410,999

103,863

13,065,24'l

3,005,174

5,383,940

12,'1653M

142,691

199,925

164,004

0,799,183)
1337,676

108,488,786

8922,274

12,294,339

197,v0

87,149,810

451,612,581

ss9216,34

1,650,843

1,799,183

3,450,026

2,581,248

8,610,883

l5,l r 1,991

26,3M,122

6359,988

69A10,99

103,863

1396s,247

3,005,174

5,383,940

12,765,3M

142,691

199,925

164,W

1337,676

111,938,812

8,022,274

12294,339

r97,340

258r,248

95,760,693

466,724,572

585J80,466

s 667.765.130 29,754,148 6975t9'278

(Continued)

See notes to fioancial statements.
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Autonomous Municipality of Caguas
Statements of Net Assets

As ofJune 30, 2010

Liabilities and Net Assets

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Accounts payable from restricted assets

Accrued liabilities

Volume ofbusiness tax deferred revenue

Deferred federal grant revenue

Accrued interest payable

Bonds, notes payable and special loans

Accrued conpensated absences

Due to other govemmental entities

Intemal balance

Advance deposits

Total currcnt liabilities

Non current liabilities net ofcurrent portions:

Bonds, notes payable, special loans and notes

Accrued compensated absences

Accrued legal clairns

Due to other governmental entities

Total non+urrent liabilities

Total liabilities

Net assets:

Invested in capital assets, net ofrelated debt

Restricted for:

Housing program

Food and children Program
Capial project

Debt service

Other special purposes

Unrestricted

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

Gov€rnmentsl BusinessTYPe

Activities Activities Total

$ 6,,+46,418

7,610,030

1,275,120

24,976,208

5,869,&2
3,985,997

19,385,000

1,457 ,314
3,986,846

(303,297)

925,581

75,614,859

215,80',7,677

13,287,006

2,995,901

1,841,565

233,932,149

309,547,008

370,6s2,456

3,978,634

608,957

3,644,871

19,99s,66'l

10,705,988

(51J68,451)

358,218,122

13,741

35,269

303,297

-

412,307

39,5'71

39,571

451,878

23,722,874

5,579,396

29.302.270

6,446,418

7,610,030

1,348,861

24,976,208

s,869,92
3,985,97

9,4m,269
11s7,314
3,986,846

925,s81

7 6,027 ,166

215,847,248

13,287,006

2,995,901

1,841,56s

233,971,720

309,998,886

394,375,330

3,978,634

608,957

3,644,871

19,99s,667

10,705,988

(4s,789,0ss)

387,520,392

$ 667.765.130 29,754,148 697,519,278

See notes to flnancial statements.

l8
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Autanomous Municipality of Caguas
Reconciliation of Fund Balatce of Governmental Funds

to Net Asse* of Govemnental Activities

As ofJune 30, 2010

Fund balance per Fuld statements

Amounts rcported for govemmental activities in the statements of net

assets are different because:

Capital assets used in govemmental activities are not fmancial

resources and are not reported in firnds

Liabilities, including due to other governmental entities S5'032'302'

Chrisfiras Bonus $1,275,120, compensated absences $ 14,744'320

and legal claims $2,995,901 are not due and payable in the cur€nt

period and thereforc are not rcported in the fimds.

Other economic resources not available to pay curent yea,

expenditures, but collectible after the period of availability, are not

reported in the fimds

Debt issued by the Municipality have associated costs that are paid

from curr€nt available financial resources in the firnds. However,

these costs are deferred on the statements ofnet assets

General obligation bonds, special and federal loans are not due and

payable in the current period and therefore not reported in the frmds

Net ass€ts of govennnental activities

See notes to financial staterxrents.

47,220,106

s38,762,391

(24,047,@3)

20,635,772

t,337,676

(22s,690,180)

$ __3s82r8122

')')
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Autonomous Municipality of Caguas
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Satuments ofActivities
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

Net chaoge in fimd balance - total governmental fimds

Amounts repoded in the statements ofactivities are different because:

Govemmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the

statements of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their

estimated useful lives as depreciation exper,se. This is the amount by which

depreciation ($21,263,816) exceeded capital outlays ($20,965,871) in the

currert period.

Revenues in the staiement of activities that do not provide current financial

r€sources arc not r€ported as revenue in the govemmental funds.

Debt and advances proceeds provide current fmancial resources lo
governmental funds, but issuing debt and advances increases long-term

liabilities in the statcment of net assets. Repayment of debt principal is an

expenditure in the governmeltal fimds, but the repayment reduces long -term

liabilities in the statement of net assets. This is the amount by which net

proceeds ($32,025,000) exceeded principal expenditures ($15,691,623).

Debt issuance costs are expenditures to govemmental funds, but are deferred

assets in dre statements of net assets. This is the amount of debt isue costs

for the year.

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not requirc the use

ofcurrent financial resources an4 therefore, are not rcported as expenditures

in the govemmental funds. This is the amount by which the net increases in

accrued compensated absences ($3,437,630), loss on disposition of capital

assets ($23,507) and liability for claim and judgements ($673,384),

Christrnas bonus for ($3,633) and liability to govemment agency for

($525,543) exceeded the net decreases in liability to other governmental

agencies $188,604.

Change in net assets of govemmental activities

See notes to financial statements.

l0,8sq05l

(297,94s)

(s,77s,142)

(16,333,377)

70,283

(4,47s9e3)

$_gsww_
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Autonomous Municipality of Caguas
Statements ofNet Assets - Proprietary Funds
As ofJune 30, 2010

Assets

Curr€rlt assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Due from other fund

Total curent ass€ts

Non cur€nt assets:

loans rcceivable, net

Capital assets:

land and improvements

Construction in progress

Total assets not being depreciated

Building and improvements

Equipment

Total assets subject to depreciation

kss: Accumulated deprec iation

Capital assets, net

Total non curr€nt assets

Total assets

See notes to financial statements.

m7,931 2,542,095

3,937,554 3,937 ,554

4,673,329 4,673,329

8,610,883 8,610,883

15,293,126 15,293,126

35,748 44,027

15,328,874 15,337,153

(22s,162) (22s,162)

8,279 23,714,595 8,7n,874

2,589,s27 23,714,59s 26,3M,122

$ 3,497,458 26,2s6,6m 29,754,148

(Continued)

Community

Development

Bank

Multitenant
Buitdings Totals

r,650,843

1,799,183 
,

3,450,026

2,581,248

907,931 '142,912

1.799.183

8,279

8,279
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Autonomous Municipality of Caguas
Satements ofNet Asse* - Propietary Funds
As ofJune j0, 2010

Liabilities and Net Ass€ts

Liabilities:
Current liabilities:
Notes payable (current portion)

Due to other fund

Accounts payable and accnred liabilities

Total current liabilities

Non current liabilities:

Notes payable (net of crr€nt portion)

Total liabilities

Net assets:

Investments in capital assets

(net of related debt)

Unrestricted

Total net assets

Total liabilities and tret asstes

See notes to financial statements-

Community
Development

Bank Totals

3t173

35,269

303,297

73,741

412,307

39,571

451,878

8,279 23,714,595 23,722,874

3,068,774 2,510,622 5,579,396

3,077,053 26,225,217 29,302,n0

3497,458 29,754,148

(Concluded)

Multitenrnt
Buildings

$ 35,269

303,297

42,268

380,834

39,571

420,40s

4733l

31,473
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Statements of Revenues, Expenses and. Changes in Net Assex
Proprietary Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

Community

Development

Bsnk

Multitenent

Buildings Totals

Operating revenue:

R€nt, interest on loans and origination fees

Operating expenses:

Payroll

Depreciation

Bad debt expense

Professional fees

Bank service charges

Repairs and maintenance

Rent

utilities
Other

Total opoating expenses

Operating loss before

contributions and ransfers

Non-operating rwenues (expenses):

Interpst hcom€

Gain on sale ofcapital assets

Other

Intersst expanse

Total non-opoating revenues

Income (loss) before contributions and hansfers

Transfos from (to) govemmental funds

Changss in net assets

Net assets at beginning of fiscal year

(as previously reported)
Prior period adjushents

Net assets at beginninB of fiscal year (as restated)

Net assets at end of fiscal year

$ l9l,59l

6,990

105,992

97,950

2,7n

20lN
6,162

305

65,504

109,645

t4t,M

43,845

49,offi

257,095

6,990

109,645

105,992

239,354
) '7',r1

43,845

20,400

6,162

49,371

Q27)et)

20,456

1,528,317

16699

(2,97r)

1,559,671 1,562,501

1,281,2t5 1,235,1l0

6328,761 5,699,388

(675,478) 7,ffi,976 6,934,498

3,fi3,206 18,244,4fi 21,847,66
t49,325 370,781 520,106

3,752,531 18,61s,241 22,367,772

3,077,053 26,225,2r7 29,302,270

240,s26 343,9fi 584486

(48,935)

5,801

(2,e71)

2,830

(46,105)

(629,373)

(2781s6)

14,655

t,528,317

16,699

See notes to financial statements.
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Autonomous Manicipality of Caguas
Statements of Cash Flows - hoprietary Funds
As ofJune 30, 2010

Development
Benk

$ 178,535

(201,485)
(6,990)

(29,940)

(r,y)

(629,313)

(192,84s)

65,504
(2r8,291)

244,039
(419,716',)

(6,990)

(2,97r',)

16,699

(629,373)
(1,591,E66)

(192,E45)

Muhitemrt
Bu dlngs Totsls

Cash flows ftom operating activities:
Receipts from customem

Payments to suppliers and professional services

Paymcnts to employEEs

Net cash used in operating activitics

Cash flows used in capital activities-
Capital assets investments
Proceeds ftom the sale ofcapital assets

Net cash provided by (used in) capital activities

Casb flows fiom non<apiul financing activities
Interest payments in ootes payable

Other
Transfer to gowrnmental fiInds
Increase in loan due from gencnl fund
Docrease in loan due !o general fund

Na cash used in
non<apiul fi nancing activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
lntcrest income

Na cash provided by investing activities

Net decrEase iD cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of fiscal par
Cash and cash equivalents at €nd offiscal year

Reconciliation of operating loss to nct

cash used in opsrathg activities:

Adjusttn€nts to reconcilc operating loss to
net cash used in operating activities:

Operating loss
Depreciation
Bad debt expense

Ircr€asc in accounts p6)able
Incr€ase in rEot and loan receivable

Na cash used in operating ectivities

SuooLoartr loforfiitio

(152,7871 (182;127)

(4E6,630)

t-656-575

r,188224 1,179,945

t6,699

(1,591,866)

(825,189) (1,57s,167) (21m,3s6)

5,801 14,655

5,801 14,655 20,456

(857,607) (s2s,07s) (1J82,662)
l,?65,538 t,267,98't 3,033,525

907,93t 742,912 1,650,E43

(48,935)

105,992
32,05t

(l19,048)

$______p28q_

(278456)
t@,645

t6,o24

Qn39t)
109,645
105,992
48,075

o 19,048)

___-_!2tE7L _____!plD_

Duritrg curent year, the Municipelity's managemeot r€stat€d the beginnitrg tret asset$ ofbusiness type activities by $370,7E1

to corr€ct the iDterfrrnd beginning balance and this cffec1 was considered within current )aar cash flow statemett.

During currEnt year therc w€rE traNfers from the capiEl Foject fund to the multi-Goant fuIld for the construction Fojects of
the Sciencc and Tcchnology Center and for the C3T€c project amoEting to $6,328,761.

During currEtrt l.ear, as a rEsult of a capital sale, the Municipality recorded a gain on the sal€ of multi-tenatrt spaces of
$1,528,317 which uras incllded as a non-operating itcm.

See not€s to financial statements.
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Autonomous Municipality of Caguas
Notes ht Financial Statement
For the Year Ended June i0, 2010

1. ST]MMARY OF SIGNTFICA}IT ACCOT]NTING BOLICTES

The Municipality ofCaguas (the Municipality), was founded in 1775, and operates as a governmental
unit of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico under the Law No. 81 of August 30, 1991, known as the

"Autonomy Municipalities Laws of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico". It is governed by a Major
and a 16 member Municipal kgislature elected for a four-year term. The Municipality provides
services to its residents in the areas of health, public works, education, public safety, urban
development, economic development, culture and recreation, and other general and administrative
services.

The accompanying financial staternents have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles
garerally accepted in the United States of America.

Financiel Rerortins Entitv

In evaluating how to define the Municipality for finencial reporting purposes, management has

considered all potential component units. The decision to include a potential component unit in the
reporting entity was made by applying the provisions of Stat€ment No. 14 of the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) as amended by GASB No. 39, "Determining whetha Certain
Organizations are Componelt Unit" - and amendment ofGASB Statement No. 14. The basic, but not
the only criterion for iacluding a potential component unit within the reporting entity, is if elected
offrcials ofa primary government are financially accountable for the entity. Financial accountability
exists if the primary government appoints a voting majority of the entity's goveming body and if
either one of the following conditions exist; the primary government can impose its will on the other
entlty or the potential exists for the other entity to (1) provide specific financial benefits to or (2)
impose specific financial burdens on the primary goveroment. A second criterion used in evaluating
potential component units is if the nature and significance ofthe relationship between the entity and a
primary government are such that to exclude the entity Aom the financial reporting entity would
render the financial statements misleading or incomplete.

GASB No. 39 provided additional guidance to determine whether certain organization for which the
primary government is not fmancially accountable should be reported as components units. A leglly
s€,parate, tax-exempt organization should be discretely presented as a component unit if all of the
following criteria are met: (a) tle economic resources received or held by the separate organization
are entirely or almost entirely for the direct be.nefit of the primary government, its component units,
or its constituents; (b) the primary gov€rtrm€nt, or its component units, is etrtitled to, or has the ability
to otherwise access, a majority of the economic resources received or held by the separate

organization, and; (c) the economic resourc€s received or held by an individual organization that the
specific primary gov€rnment, or its component units, is entitled to, or has the ability to otherwise
access, are sigpificant to the primary gov€rnment.

Th€re are two methods of presentation of the component unit in the financial statements: blending -
the financial data of the component unit's balances and transactions in a manner similar to the
presentation of the Municipality's balance; and discrete - prese.ntation of the component unit's
financial data in column separate from the Municipality's balances and kansactions.
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The relative importance of each criterion must be evaluated in light of specific circumstances in order
to determine which component units are to be included as part of the reporting entity. Our specific
evaluations of the criteria applicable to the Municipality indicate no organizations meet the crit€ria to
be included as componeot units. Accordingly, these basic financial statements present only the
Municipality as the r€porting entlty.

These financial statfiIents present the respective financial position of the governmental activities,
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate rernaining fund information of the
Municipality, as of June 30, 2010, and the respective changes in fimncial positioq where applicable,
thereof for the fiscal year then ended Based on the above criteria, the Municipality does not have
compooent rmits to include within its reporting entity.

In June 1999, tlre Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued GASB Statement No.
34, Basic Financial Statements - and Management's Discussion and Analysis - for State and Iaal
Gov€rnments. GASB No. 34 significantly changed the way in which the Municipality reported its
filances.

GASB No. 34 established two bases for reporting financial information: govemment-wide financial
statements and fund presentation. The governmenlwide financial statements method adopts the flow
of ecotromic resources measurernent focus and accmal basis of accounting for both governmental
activities and business-type activities. The basis for preparing fund financial statements is similar to
conventional gov€rnmetrtal financial statements except the focus for presentation is on major funds
rather than fund types. Capital assets, including infrastructure assets, and depreciation cbarges are
reported on the entity-wide perspective financial statements. The management's discussion and
analysis information precedes the basis financial statements but is considered required supplementary
information. Budgetary information is no longer presented in the financial statements but rather is
presented as required supplementary information.

The Municipality implemented this statement in fiscal year ended June 30, 2003.

Buic Financial Statements GASB Stetement No. 34

Government -Wide Finrncirl Statements3

The focus of the govemment wide financial statements is on the overall financial position and
activities of the Municipality as a whole. The government wide financial statements will provide with
the following:

o Present financial information about the overall goverDmert without presenting information
about the individual fimds or fund types.

o Differentiate between the Municipality's governmental activities and business type activities.

o Measure and present all financial balances and activities based on the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis ofaccounting.

The flow of economic resources measurement and accrual accounting are the basis upon which
government wide financial stat€mefts are prepared. Under the flow of economic resources
measurement focus and accrual basis of accounting, revenu€s are recopized when earned and
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expens€xi are recognized when incurred when these activities are related to exchange and exchangelike activities. In addition, longJived assets are capitarizd La aepr"ciut"a oro- tn"i, *ti..t"aeconomic lives.

The government-wide statements include the statement of Net Assets and the statement ofActivities:

Strtemetrt of Net Assets:

Presentation of assets and liabilities - Assets and liabilities should be presented in the statementof net assets based on their rerative liquidity. The liquidity of the 
"..a.'i, d"to.irJ u"rJ tn"i,

ability to be convertod in cash and the absence of any restriction that might fi.it tleir *n orio,to cash- The liquidity of liabilities is based on maturiiy dates or expected-payment dates.

Presentation of capital assa$ - The governmental entity should report all of its capital assets intle statement of net assets, based on their original historical cost. capital urr*"ui"i rrur"-i"*
donated should be capitalized at their estimatqJfair value at the date ofthe receipt.

Prqenlatiqn of long-t€rm liabilities - I-ong-term liabilities include debts such as bonds, notes,
and federal loans' In addition, operating liabilities such as compensated absences and claims must
be reported in the statement ofnet asseti.

Ps-enlatipn of componelt of net assets - Net ass€ts rE)resent the difference between the
Municipality's total assets and its total liabilities. The statement of net assets must iaeniiry Oe
components of the net assets, namely (a) invested in capital assets, net of refatJ aJi Olrestricted net assets; and (c) unrestricted net assets.

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt is the difference between capital assets (net of
accumulated depreciation) and liabilities attributable to the acquisitioq 

"o^t 
o"ti-' o.improvement of those assets.

Reskicted net assets arise if eith€r ofthe following conditions exists: (a) externally imposed by
creditor, grantors, contributors or laws and regulations of other governments or @) imposed by
law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Assets that are not classified as invested in capital ass€ts (net of related debt) or restricted are
included in the category ofunrestricted net assets.

Statement of Activities:

Revenues a-nd other financing inflows - A fundamental concept in the presentation of the
statement ofactivities is the identification ofresources inllows to the Municipality that are relatedto specific programs and those that are generar in nature. Revenues "."'di;'dJil;.;;;.revenues and general revenues.

rloray rev€nues - Program revenues are those tbat are identified with a specific functioq
otherwise the revenues would not flow 

-to 
the Municipality. As established b"r"* p."s".

revenues are presented in the statement ofactivities as a subtraction ofrelated program expJnses
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in order to identifo the net cost or benefit ofa particular program. Prog'am rwenues are divided
in charges for services, operating grants and contributions and capital grants.

General revenues - General revenues included resources that are not specifically related with a
spocific function, but that are used in the operation of the Municipality.

Exoenses - The Municipahty r€,ports expens€s, including depreciation expense by function.
Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a service, progam or department
and are clearly identifiable to a particular function.

Generally, the cost (net of estimated salvage value) of capital assets should be depreciated over
their estimated useful lives. Depreciation expense is reported as direct expense of the specific
functional category with which the rela0ed capital asset has relationship.

Fund Financial Statements:

F"nd based financial staternents are included in order to demonstrate that restrictions imposed by
statutes, regulations, or contracts have been followed- The Municipality has the following major
funds:

Governmental Funds - These financial statements have a short term emphasis and generally measure
and accoutrt for cash and other assets that can easily be converted to cash and are used to account for
the Municipality's expendable financial resources and the related liabilities. The measurement focus is
upon determination of any changes in financial position The Municipality's major funds are the
following:

General Fund

The general firnd is used to account for all financial transactions, except those required to be
accounted for in another fund-

Housinq and Rental Proerams

Accounts for current financial resources restricted mainly for housing rental progra.ms to low and
very low income family units. Resources are funded by the United States Deparhent of Housing
and Urban Development mainly through the Section 8 Housing Voucher and Home Investment
Pannership Programs-

Public Residential Administration

On March 26, 2003, the Municipality entered into an Int€rgovernmental Management Agreement
with the Puerto Rico Public Housing Administration (PRPHA). The purpose of the Agreqnent
was to designate the Municipality to act as independent contractor for the PRPIIA to manage,
administer and op€rate the low income housing project denominrted as Jose Gautier Benitez (the
Project), under the United States Housing Act of 1937, as amended. The Project is located at
State Road No. l, behind Villa del Carmen Shopping Center, Caguas, Puerto Rico.
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As part ofthe Agreement, the Municipality submits, on the lst day of February ofeach year, an
Annual Management Plan in which it delineates its proposed budgets for the year and any work to
be performed in the Project.

The Municipality operates the Program using fiscal periods beginning on July lst and ending
June 30th.

Head Start Food and Children Program

It was previously reported as Head Start Youth and Children funds. Accounts for current ftr,ancial
resources restricted for the education of pre-school aged children that are mainly funded by the
United States Department of Health and Human Services and the United States Department of
Agriculture. It also accounts the gra:rts and donated food to maintain a food service program for
eligible children and adults in nonresideirtial day care settings.

Capital Proiects

Capital projects fund is used to account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or
comtruction of major capital facilities, other than those financed by proprietary funds. It also
iocludes the Community Development Block Grants (CDBG) which are awarded to develop
viable urban communities by providing decent housing and suitable living environment for
persons oflow and moderate income.

Debt Service Funds

The debt service fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment
of, general long-term debt principal, int€rest and related costs.

Legislative Funds

The legislative funds account the accumulation of resources approved by the trgislature of the
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico designated for ttre investment of such in special projects related
mainly with health and welfarg public works, economic development and others as requested by
the Municipality's citizenship.

Other Governmentel Funds

It was previously reported as Other Special Revenue funds. Current financial resources used to
account for the proceeds ofspecific revenue sources (other thrn debt service or capital projects) such
as federal grants, that are legally restricted to expenditures for various specified purposes.

The financial statements of the governmental funds are the following:

Balance Sheet - Reports information at June 30, 2010 about the current filancial resources
(assets, liabilities and fund balances) of each major governmental fund.
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Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Chane€s in Fund Balance - Reports information about
the inIlows, outflows and balances of current financial resources of each major governmeftal
fund for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010.

Proorietarv Funds - Financial statements for proprietary funds are based on the flow of economic
resources (measurement focus) and the accrual basis of accounting. They are used to account for
activities, which are similar to operations in the private sector. The proprietary fund type consists of
enterprise funds.

Enterorise Funds

The enterprise funds are used to account for operations that are financed and opoated in a rnanner
similar to private business enterprises where the intent is that the cost ofproviding goods and services
(including depreciation) be fimnced or recovered primarily tbrough user charges, or where the
Municipality has decided that periodic determir:ation of revenues earned and expenses incurred is
appropriate.

Each enterprise fund has the option under GASB No.20 Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Proprietary Funds and Other Govemmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting to elert
an apply all Financial Accounting Standard Board @ASB) pronouncements issued after November
30, 1989, unless this conflict with a GASB pronouncement. The enterprise funds within the
Municipality have elected io apply FASB pronouncements issued after November 30, 1989. The
Municipality's enterprise funds follows:

Communitv Development Bank - Accounts for the economic resources designated mai"ly for the
approval of loans for economic development, education and ernergency in the benefit of the
Caguas citizenship.

Multiterant Buildings (previouslv reoorted as Multitenant Funds) - Accounts for the deposit of
rental resources designated for the Municipality's normal operation other than those functions
accounted in the general fund.

The financial staterrents of the proprietary funds are the following:

Statement of Net Assets or Balance Sheet - Assets and liabilities are presented in a classified
format to distinguish between current and long term assets and liabilities.

Statement of Revenues. Exoenditures and Changes in Net Assets - Revenues and expenses are
reported by distinguishing between operating and non-operating revenues and experses.

Statement of Cash Flows - The primary purpose of the stat€,ment of cash flows is to provide
relevant information about the cash receipts and disbursements of the Municipality during the
fiscal year. The information of the stat€ment of cash flows should help financial report users

assess (a) Municipality's ability to generate future net cash flows; (b) ability to meet its obligation
as they come due; (c) its needs for external financing; (d) the reasons for differences between
operating income and associated cash receipts and disbursements and the effects on the entity's
financial position of operating capital and related financing activities, non-capital related
financing activities and investment activities during the period
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Basis of Accountine

The basis of accounting determines when the Municipality recognizes revenues and
expenditures/expenses and related assets and liabilities. Governmental fund types follow the modified
accrual basis of accounting. Under this basis of accounting, revenues are recorded in the accounting
period in which they become susceptible to accrual, that is, when they become both measurable and
available. Available is defined as expected to be collected within the current period or soon enough
sixty days - thereafter to be used to pay liabilities ofthe current period

In applying the susceptible to accrual concept to governmental revenues, there are essentially two
types of rwenues. In onq monies must be expended on the specific purpose or project before any
amounts will be paid to the Municipality; thereforg revenues are recognized based upon the
expenditures incurred- In the other, monies are virtually unrestricted and are usually revocable only
for failure to comply with prescribed compliance requirements. These resources are reflected as

revenues at the time of receipt or earlier ifthe susceptible to accrual criteria are met.

The Municipality reports deferred revenue or its combined balance sheet. Deferred revenue arises
when potential rwenue does not meet both the measurable and available criteria for recognition in the
curre,nt period. Deferred revenue also arises when the Municipality receives resources before it bas a
legal claim to them, as when grant monies are received prior to th€ incurrence of qualifring
expenditures.

In subsequent periods, when both revenue recopition critaia are met, or when the Municipality has a
legal claim to the resources, the liability for deferred revenues is removed from the combined balance
sheet and revenue is recognized.

Licenses, permits, service charges, fines and forfeits and miscellaneous revenu€s are recorded as

revenues on the cash basis, which includes amounts collected shortly after June 30. Investment
income is recorded as revenue when received Expenditures and related liabilities are generally
recorde4 except as described below, in the accounting period in which the liability is incuned.
Expenditures and related liabilities for interest on long-term obligations, are recorded when due,

except for interest due July lst of the following year which is accounted for as paid on June 30.
Vacation, sick leave, disallowances and litigation are recorded in the statement ofnet assets.

Tlre e.nterprise fund follows the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis, revenue is

recognized when earned and expenses are recorded as liabilities when incurre4 without regard to
receipt or payment of cash. The enterprise funds also distinguish operating revenue and expe ies

from non operating items. Operating rwenue and expenses generally results from providing services
and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing
op€ration. Revenue and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenue
and expenses. The major operating revenue of the Municipality's enterprise fund are interests and
loan origination fees on loans granted to the Caguas citizenship.

Crsh rnd Inve$ments

Substantially all cash balances are commingled in a deposit and checking accounts, certificates of
deposits and several special purpose bank accounts, except for cash and inv€stments restricted by law.
Each fund records its equity futerest in the pooled cash balance. The available cash balance in the
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general checking account beyond immediate needs is invested in interest bearing deposits. Investment
earnings are all credited to the general fund. Cash and cash equivalents include investments with
original maturities of nindy days or less from the date of acquisition. The Municipality has also
implemented the provision of GASB No. 40, Deposit an(l Investment Risk Disclosures, an
amendment of GASB No. 3. This statanent establishes and modifies disclosure requircments related
to ir:vestment risks; credit rish foreiga currency rislq and deposits rislq as applicable.

Investments are carried at fair market value. Investments are composed ofhighly liquid U.S. Treasury
Securities which are covered by the provisions ofGASB Stat€,m€nt No. 31 "Accounting and Financial
reporting for Certain Investments and for Extemal Investment Pools" therefore, the Municipality
accounts for changes in the market value ofits investments at the closing ofthe period.

Cash with fucal agent includes property tax collections withheld by the Municipal Revenue
Collection Cento (CRIM, as per its Spanish acronyms) which are restricted for the payment of the
Municipality's general obligations through the debt service fund. It also includes loans disbursements
which were roceived by the Municipality after dre end of fiscal year.

Receivables

The receivable in the general fund include predominantly amounts owed by taxpayers for volume of
business tax and for the sales and use tax, net of estimated uncollectible amounts. These items are
recognized as revenue when they become measurable and available based on actual collections during
the soon enough period following the fiscal year end related to tax rehrms due before year end These
receivables also include amounts owned by taxpay€rs on income earned in periods prior to June 30,
2010, estimated to be collectible but not currently availablq and thus are reported as deferred revenue
in the general fund.

Accounls receivable are stated net of estimated allowances for uncollectible accounts which are
dAermined based upon past collection experience and current economic conditions.

Inter-Fund Transections

The Municipality has the following types oftransactions among funds:

Ooerating Transfers - Transfers that are reported when incurred as "Operating transfos in ' by the
recipient fund and as "Opei:ating transfers ouf'by the disbuning fund.

Receivables and Pavable Transactions between funds outsranding at the end of the frscal year
are referred as due to/from other funds. The general fund provides services, at cost, to other
funds. The amounts charged to other funds are treatod as reductions in expenditures ofthe general

fimd.

Eliminations are made in ttre government wide stat€ments of the amounts reported as inter-fund
receivables as well as operating transfers, except for the net residual amounts due between
governmental and business-type activities, which are reported as internal balances.
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Caoital Assets

capital assets acquired or construgted, whether owned by governmental activities or businesstypeactivities are recorded and depreciated.ir tr," go"oo-#-iid, i;.;l ;;;,;: t;ffi;#-capital assets or depreciation are shown in th" g;r*"-;;l il; financial statements.

capital assets, include public domain infrastucture (e.g., roads, bridges, sidewalks and other assetsttrat are immovable and of value only to the Municrpurityl. c"pit"r assets with an individuar cost of$210,000 or more are recorded at cost or estimated historical coit if purchased 
"i**"r","a c"pirrassets under this amount are capitalized if the estimateal life of assets is extended by more than 25%,the cost results in an increase in the capacity of tn" u.*"q a" 

"tr"iency 
of the assets i, i""r*.J uymore than-107o' significantly changes the 

"h-""to 
if the assJ or in the case of streets and roads-ifthe work done impacts the "base" itructure. oo*t"a 
".piliiisets are recorded at the estfuEted fairmarket lue at the date of donation. Equipment and otfr* *itil *s 

"f 
$100 or more are recorded atcost or estfunated historical cost.

The cost ofnormal maintenance and repats that do not add to the value ofthe capital asset or extendcapital.assets 
{v3..are no! capitarized. Major improvements are capitalized and .i"pr*L,"a 

"r* ,r"remaining usefirl lives of the rerated capital assets. rinaflv, major outlays for i"pior 
^*. *aimprovements are capitalized as the projecis are construct;. " -

capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method oveI the following estimated useful lives:

Installations and recreational parks
Building and building improvements
Infrasfructure

Personal property, plaques and monuments
Software

120 to 600 months

60 to 600 months

nil to 600 months

36 to 180 months

12 to 72 months

The 
Mlni+ality follows the provision of GASB statement No. 42, Accounting and Financiar

leporting fy Imyainnent of capial Assets and for Insurance Recoveries - an ame'ndnent oy GASBstatement No. 34. This staiement establisha guidance for accounting uoa ."po.ting-'r.- in"impairment of capital assets and for iosurance recorlries.

I)eferred Revenue

Deferred revenue at the govertrmental fund level arises whan potential revenue does not meet eitherthe measurable or available criteria for revenue recognitioo i" tn" current p€riod. Deferred rwenuealso arises when resources are received before the ti*r"ip"fity has a legal claim to them ;;;he
case of the volume of business tax which is collected on epat is each year, tut wnict are arnatJteto use within the immediate following fiscar year operations and activities. L .;tG;;fi;,
when the revenue reognition critaia is m*, or wien the Uunicipatity h". 

" l"g"i;i;iJ;;;"
rcsources' the liability for the deferred revenue is reclassified tD revenue. Deferre<t revenue at thegovernment-wide and proprietary fund revers arises onry when the Municipality ;"i"; ;;.;;*before it has a legal claim to thexn.
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Accrued Comoensated Absences

Employees accrue vacation leave at a rate of 2.5 days per month up to a maximum of30 days. Unpaid
vacation time accumulated is fully vested to the employees from the frst day of work. Employees

accumulate sick leave at a rate of 1.5 days per month up to a maximum of90 days. Upon retirement,
an employee receives compensation for all accumulated unpaid sick leave at their then current rate of
pay, if the employee has at least 10 years of service with the Municipality. Total vested pay benefits

accrued for compensated absences at June 30, 2010 amounts to $14,744,320.

Long-term Debt

The liabilities reported in the government-wide statements include the Municipality's general

obligation bonds and notes fff the realization of capilal projects, and other long+erm liabilities
including vacatiorq sick leave, and litigation. Long term obligations financed by propriaary fund

types are recorded as liabilities in those funds. Other long term liabilities besides the bonds, notes

and special loans, as ttre accrued compensated absences, and accrued legal claims are liquidated using

resources from the general fund-

Prerniums, discounts, and issuance sosts, whenever arisg are presented in the respective fund column

and are deferred and amortized over the life of the debt. Bond issue costs are presented as deferred

charges in the government-wide financial statements while being reported as expenditures within the

fund financial statements.

Reserves of Fund Balence

Reserves of fund balance represent portions of fund balances that are legally segregated for a specific

future use or are not appropriable for expenditure. The Municipality has the following reservations of
fund balance:

Encumbrances - represent future expenditures under purcbase orders, contracts and other

commitments. These committed amounts generally will become liabilities in future periods as the

goods or services are received.

Debt Service - Represents fund balance available to finance future debt service payments'

Capital Proiects - Represent fund balance available to finance future capital outlays and other

puuti" *o.t projects- Also includes fund balances available to finance projects approved by the

Lgi.l"t-" oi th" Co.-oo*ealth of Puerto fuco for housing, culture and recrealion,, public

woiks, economic development and other activities requested by the Municipality's citizenship.

Head Start Food and Chil&en Prolrams - Represent firnd balances available to finance activities

of 
"do*tioo 

and care of the eligible elderly populatio4 mainly tkough the Head start, child
Care and Child Care Fmd federal programs.

Housine Projects - Represent fund balances available to finance activities oriented to the housing

rent, acquisition, construction and rehabilitation for the Municipality's eligible citizenship.
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Soecial proiects - Represent fund balances available to finance activities which serve different

purpos€s as stated through donor's imposed restrictions.

Chims rnd Judgments

The estimated amount of the liabitity for claims and judgments, which is due on deman4 such as

from adjudicated or settled claims, is recorded in the general fund. The government wide financial

statements include an amount estimated as a contingent liability or liabilities with a fixed or expected

due date which will require future available financial resources for its payment'

Use of Estimttes

The preparation of the financial statement in conformity with GAAP requires man'gement to make

estimates and assumptions that afrect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure

of coDtingent assets and liabilities at the date of the basic financial staternents and the reported

amount oFrevenues and experses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those

estimates.

Subseouent Events

In preparing the financial statements, the Municipality's managernent consider events 
-and

transaciions 
-subsequent to June 30, 2010, that are determined to be significant and material for

financial statemenipurposes. Within this process, management consults with its legal counsel and

perform monitoring'procedures over significant receipts and disbursernents and over the Municipal

I€gislature ordinances and resolutions, among other procedures.

truture AdoDtion of Accounting Pronoutrcements

The GASB has issued the following accounting standards that bave effective dates after June 30,

2010:

o GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Goyemmental Fund Type Dertn ions.

The objective of this statement is to enhance the usefulness of fund balance information by

p.oriaig clearer fund balance classifications that can be more consistently applied and by

"f-ifyi"E 
the existing governmental fund type definitions. This Statement establishes fund

balante 
-classificatiors 

that compromise a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which.a

government is bound to observe constraints imposed upon the use of the resourc€s reported m

lovernmental funds. This Statement is effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2010.

. GASB Statement No. 57 , OPEB Measurements by Agent Employers and Agent Multiple'

Employer Plans. This Statement ad&ess issues related to the use ofthe alternative measurement

-"ima -a the frequency and timing of m€asurements by employers that participate in agent

.rttiptu-"-ptoyer oth€r postemployment benefit (OPEB) plans' The provisions of this

Statement related to the use and reporting of the alternative m€asurement method are effective

immediately. The provisions related to the frequency and timing of measurernent are effective

for actuarial valuations fust used to r€port funded status information in oPEB plan firancial

statements for periods beginning after iune 15, 2011. Earlio application of this Statement is

encouraged.
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r GASB Stratement No.59, Financiat Instruments Omnibus. The objective of this Statement is to

update and improve existing standards regarding frnancial reporting and disclosure requirements

oi certain financial instruments and external investment pools for which significant issues have

been identified in practice. This statsment is effective for periods beginning after June 15,2010.

The impact of these statements on the Municipality's basic financial statements has not yet been

determined-

AI\INUAL REVENUES

hnooertv Taxes

The CR11i[ is responsible for the assessment of all real and personal property located within the

Municipality of Caguas and for the levy, administration and collection of the corresponding taxes'

The property tax is levied each year on the assessed value of the prop€rty at the beglnning of the

calendar- year. Assessed values ofreal property are established at the estimated current value existing

in the year I 957 and of personal prop€rty at the current value at the date of assessment.

Complete real prop€rty tax exoneration is granted by the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico on the flrst

$1S,OOO of tne asiessed valuation of owner occupied residential units. However, the Municipality

receives the full amount levid except for residential units assessed at less than $3,500 on which a

complete exemptiol is granted. Complete exemption from personal pro'perty taxes up to an

assessment of$50,000 is granted to retailers with an annual volume of net sales under $150,000' The

D€partment ofthe Treasury, instead of the property taxpayer, becomes the source ofpayment ia these

c3ses.

The annual effective tax rate for fiscal year 2010 is 10.03% for real property and 8.53% for personal

propelty of which 1.03% of each belongs to the commonwealth of Puerto Rico. The lgrnaining

pel'centage is distributed as follows:

(a) 6.000/o and 4.00% respectively, represe,trt the Municipality's basic property tax rate which is

"pprop.irt"d 
for g*oul purposes and accounted for in the genoal fund The basic property tax rate

is segregated tV -RIM and accounted for an equalization fund together with a pocentage of tht.net

re"eiui of tUe puerto Rico electronic lott€ry and a subsidy from the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico.

The equalization fund assures that every municipality receive at least an amount equal to the tax

collected to its base year or prior year.

(b) 3% of each represents the ad valorem tax restricted for debt service and accounted for in the

debt service fund-

The Commonwealth makes a conkibution equivalent to .20% portion ofthe tax rates to compensate

the municipality for a discount granted to the taxpayers. Accordingly the taxpayer's imposed tax rate

for real and personal prope,lty is 9.83% and 7.83%, respectively'

Since the collection of property taxes Aom the taxpayers is under the adminiskation of the CRM' it
shall report to the Municipality the estimated and actual revenues related to property taxes, as well as

the cosi of its operationai expe'nses allocated to the Municipality. During the fiscal year ended June

30, 2010, the allocated expenses amounted to $1,480,981 (before final liquidation).
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Section 5803(b) of Law No. 80 of the CRIM, allows the municipalities to develop and carry on

activities and programs to expedite the assessments of new constructions and existing properties not

yet assessed. Accordingly, along with a covenant with the CRM, the Municipality of Caguas

engaged into an initiative in order to increase the basis ofproperties over which the tax rate is applied

and also to collect the resulting taxes receivable in arrears at the CRIM (thoe is no receivable

recorded within the Municipality's general ledger). The Municipality contracted an external

consulting firm to assist and expedite these services. Among the different types of services offero4
the consulting firm has engaged into the process ofassisting the CRIM to assess the new construction

and otho existing prop€rties. These assessments will become thsn part of the CRM tax roll register.

This is the subsidiary of all properties assessed for tax purposes.

The new assessed prop€rties are submitted for review and validation by the CRIM which proceeds to

assip the assessed valuation and the tax to be imposed Then, the CRIM determines those new

properties that would to be added in the tax roll, either because they are from new construction or

because are previous existing properties, with betterments ideotified but not reported previously. This

process is poformed either through physical irupections, knowledge of existent activities within the

Municipality or by comparing the sales volume taxes retums (in case of commercial properties) with
the property taxes retums, among other strategies. The updated information is delivered to the CRIM
in order to be included within the tax roll for subsequent taxes levies.

Also, the consulting firm provides services to the Municipality by providilg services to the taxpayer

and by providing aggressive follow up on the CRIM taxes receivables in arrears. The purpose ofthese

combined efforts is increasing the tax revenue for the Municipality.

Municioel License Taxes

The Muoicipality imposes a volume ofbusiness tax pursuant to Act No. 82 of August 30, 1991, on all

business entities, which operate within the Municipality, which are not exempt from the tax pursuant

to the Industrial Incentives Act. The tax is based on gross rev€nues, as defined by law, computed at

the raie of 1.50% for financial institutions and savings and loans associations, and .50% for all other

business entities.

The minimum gross revenue to file the Volume of Business Tax Declaration is $5,000 and the

minimum tax payable is $25. The date to file the Volume of Business Tax Declaration is April l5
each year. TheMunicipality grants a five percent discount if the taxes are paid on or before April 15.

Otherwise, 50% of taies payable must be paid within the first 15 days of each semester beginning

with the fiIst ssmest€r ending December 31.

Collections of volume of business tax revenu€s received mainly in April 15 are accounted for as

deferred revenues, since such collections have a time requirement and should be used shning July lst
of nod fiscal year. In the next fiscal year, the deferred volume of business tax revetrues is recognized

as revenuq net ofany credit or refunds payable to taxpayers.

Seles Texes

On July 4, 2006, Law No. 117 known as "Tax Justice Iaw of 2006" (hereinaft€r the AcQ

incorporated a set of am€xrdments to taw No. 120 of October 31, 1994 - "Intemal Revenue Code of
Puerto Rico of 1994'. One of the objectives of this Act was to impose a general sale and use tax of
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5'5% at the Commonwealth level. of this 5.5%, the Act authorized the Municipalities to impose sales
and use tax of 1.5olo at the Municipal level following the same regulations imposed in the Ac; It was
a mandate that the 1.57o was approved and established by ordinance duly approved by trr" li*i"6ur
kgislature.

on July 12' 2006, the Municipality approved ordinance No. 6A-6, Series 2006-2007 imposing the
1.5% sales and use tax as authorized in the Act, effective Septemb q 1,2006. corseqr*trv,
ordinance No. 05A-46, as amendd was rescinded effective August 31,2CFl6. The Internal Revenue
code of Puerto Rico of 1994 was again ame,nded with Iaw No. & or tuly 29, zooT , .[in*[y
addressing Law No. r17 . I-aw M. 80 made it a requirernent for Municipaiities to impoie a 1.5%
municipal lax uniformly across the Commonwealth. Municipalitia would collect 1% as previousty
established in Sections 2410 and 6189 of the Act and the remaining .5% would be cotte"jiJ uy tne
Department of Treasury of the Commonwealth of Puerto fuco. Il orier to comply with the new State
T11-codcr on August 3, 2007 rhe Municipality approved ordinance 0784 (effective August 1, 2007),
which abolished Ordinance No. 64-6, S€ries 2006-2007 and took the Municipality oii the'role of
imposing regulatiors over the sales and use tax. From this point forward all amendments, new laws,
rules, and regulations are responsibilities of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico as stated by the law.

As per the last amendment, the current I-aw No. 80 dictates that the .5% collected by the Department
of lYfyy will be deposited and administered by the Puerto Rico Gov€rnment oevelopment Bank
and will be used for the fotlowing purposes:

1. Muniqioal Rgde4otion Fund - composed of .2olo of the .5% (equivalent to 40y). To be used to
grant loans for the exclusive benefit of the municipalities. 'Ihis fun4 in addition to other
variables, is used to calculate the Municipality's borrowing power within a specific timeframe.
The Municipality's borrowing margin for the audited year wai approximately $zg,ooo,ooo wlth a
contribution to the fund (ir: the audited year) of g3,06g,641.

2. Muni. .gipal D-evQlooment Fud - composed of .2% of the .5% (equivalent ro 4o%o). To be used to
establish a Municipal Development Fund to be distributed amonf a[ municipalities accord.ing to
the formula established as part ofthe Iaw.

3. Munigioel rmorovements Fund - .lo/o of the .5% (equival t to 2ooa. To be distributed
according to kgislation passed by the Legislative Assembly for capital improvernent projects in
the municipalities.

3. CASE CASE EQUTVALENTS, A}ID II\TVESTMENTS

Puerto Rico laws authorize governmental entities to invest in direct obligations or obligations
guaranteed by the federal government or the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. The Municipality is also
allowed to invest in bank acceptances, other bank obligations and certificates of deposii in financial
institutions authorized to do business mder the federal and Commonwealth laws- During the year, the
Municipality invested its funds in interest bearing bank accounts, and certificates oia"porit. 1'h"
Mmicipality is subject to the following credit risks:
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Custodian Credit Risk

The Municipality is authorized to deposit only in institutions approved by the Department of the

Treasury of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. Such deposits should be kept in separate accounts in
the name of the Municipality. Under Puerto Rico statutes, public funds deposited in commercial
banks must be fully collateralized for the amount deposited il excess of federal depository insurance.

During the year ended June 30, 2010, the Municipality invested its funds in bank accounts bearing
interest.

At June 30, 2010 the Municipality had bank balances as follows:

Insured by the Federal Deposits Insurance Corporation and the

Securities hvestor Protection Corporation

Collateralized by securities held by the pledging frnancial institution's hust

depatment in the Municipality's name

Total

2,500,000

18,644,69s

$ 21,144,695

In additioq as of June 30 2010, the Municipality's custodial credit risk was approximately $75.4

million, which is the bank balance of cash deposited at the Govemment Dwelopment Bant for Puerto

Rico. These deposits are exempt from the collateral requirement established by the Commonwealth.

Interest rate risk

At June 30, 2010, the Municipality maintains investments in debt securities with a fair market value

of approximately $2.7 million, which are socured by the Federal Govemment. Market values ofsuch
investments are very sensitive to the changes in the interest rates. At June 30, 2010, the Municipality
had a risk ofnot recovering the market value ofsuch investments if such investments are sold.

Concentratbn of Credit Risk

No investment in debt security in any organization represe s 5olo or more of the Municipality's net

assets.

4. INTERG'OYER}IMENTAL REVENUES

Sources of int€rgovernmental revenues are primarily of governmental payments from the

Commonwealth of Puerto Rico and "in lieu of tax" palanents from certain quasi public corporations,

such as Puerto Rico Electric Power Authority (PREPA). The amount of contribution in lieu of tax for
the year 2009-2010 was $8,710,559.

Grants and subsidies received fiom the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico include, among others,

subsidies through legislative appropriations rrainly for capital improvements.
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5. INTER-FI,]1\ID LOANS

Due ftom/to other fruds

Inter-fund receivables and payables generally reflect temporary loans, billings for services provided
and recovery of expenditures. Following is a summary of inter-fund assets and liabilities as of June

30, 2010:

Receiveble F und Payable fund Amount

General

Multitenant

General

Head Start Food and Children Program

The purposes of each inter-fund balances are the following:

Payables to the general funds:

Housing and Rortal Prograrn

Public Residential Adminisfation
Community Development Bank

Legislative

Other Governmental Fund

Capital Project

General

$ 54,869

99,9s9

303,297

414,977

t,525,957

6,705,572

9,104,631

1,799,183

1,799,183

376,978

$ 376,978

Housine and Rental - includes expenditures mainly of the Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher,

HOME Investment Partnership Program and other housing projects sponsored by the

Municipality, which are initially disbursed tbrough the gener-al fund.

Public Residential Administration - includes rnaintenance expenditures allowable under the

intergovernmental agreement between the Municipality and the hrerto Rico Public Housing

Administration regarding the Jose Gautier Benitez public residential housing project, by which
the Municipality is a Management Agent for the maintenance of the dwellhg units and the
facilities ofthe project, as well as other certain other administration tasks. These expenditures are

initially disbursed through the general fund.

Communitv Development Bank (CDB) - includes professional fees, relrt and other operating

experBes ofthe CDB, but disbursed initially through the general fund.

Other Governmental Funds and Lesislative Funds includes expenditures mainly to finance

certain public safety and health and welfare projects that involve both the use of federal and

municipal funds and which were initially disbursed through the general fund.
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Capital Proiect Fund - includes expenditures mainly of the Community Development Block
grants and Community Facilities Ioans Programs and other related projects sponsored by the

Municipality, which are initially disbursed through the general fund.

Transfen in/out

Inter-fund transfers inlout reflect the transfers of resources between from one fund to another without

the attempt of recovering. Following is a summary of inter-fund trarsfers for the year ended June 30,

2010:

Transfers in Trsnsfers out Amorrnt

Capital Project

Debt Service

C)ther Governmental

Multitenant

Other Govemmental

General

General

Capital Project

Cornmunity Development Bank

Other Govemmental

$ 324,000

5,862,ffi6
2,215,061

840r,667

$

:
6,328,761

__($28l6t)_

629,373

___(62e372_

20,670

__@,670)_

$ 6,328,761

$ (6,328,761)

$ 629,373

s (629,373)

$ 20,670

The purposes of each inter-fund balances are the following:

Transfers-out from the General Fund - curr€rf financial resources transferred for the performing

of capital projects, housing, op€rational loans debt service payments, public safetn public works

and health and welfare projects and CDB's debt service and administrative expens€s.

Transferout from Capital Proiect Fund - current financial resources transferred to the multi-

tei:ant fund for the construction projects ofthe Science and Technology centa and for the c3Tec
project.

Transfers-out from the Communitv Develooment Bank - current financial resources hansferred

Io the governmental funds with regards to funding for the Vocational Technical Educational

Cormcil to guarantee student loans.

Transfers-out from the Other Governmental Funds - current financial resources transf€rred to the

general fund for operational purposes.
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6. CAPITALASSETS

A summary of the activity of capital assets for governmental activities group follows :

B.l.Be
Jum30,20(D Addtiort R.tinEertr Tr.Efort

Crpihl ass.t not hehg d€gecided

t nd alld fuprovtmenb

Cotrshrction in Fogress

Wck of art rnd histfiical t!.suns
Total not being d.prEciabd

Other cEitrl ,ssels

Faciliti6 ard illpmveminb

Buildings md itrlp.oveflmb

CoquLr softvarr

hfizsEu.t E

E$ripmgtlt urd vdicl6
Tohl o$er capilal asseh

Acqmul.tcd d€prEcidiol

Facilities ad irryrowma s

Building ed imFovem€ob

EquiprB{ ed vdiclG
&npltlf sotwarE

InnasEuctrc

cqihl assds, d

| 46,517,t46

33,Mt,99 19243,500

1123,6t 45,900

83,U7,716 19289,400

35,886,?72

r94,394,872

r, 2,m4

411,316422

391W654 t,676,471

7m2t48c/' t,616,411

B.l.Ee Deprl irtion
J[tr030,20(D Erpe6. R.tircneiff

05,187J26)

\125,336
9,171,660

3190,330

-

15,187,326

TnDrfall

Bdrn .
Juno 30, 20t0

47,110,140

36,W,56
117456t

87,149,810

18212,1fr

203,7ff,532

1,112,fr4

4t6,E26,152

40,86?JA

20,n4,785

Bdinaa

J!I.30,2010

r l,166,03t

85,360,86t

26A6A%

}t1,61
145,501,149

713,594

05,e0,90)

10,154J08

81,014,743

24,]]0,n6

T7,61

121t,523

$2nJll
2,7ff.,W ,r,?

132,540,981 12,9&,16

2481n,O1 2l 263,816 Ql0,1cD)

$_--__l4g!184j_ _____W,s45J- _____(23107)_

...,...................- 269Jn2M

: ____sxlailt-

During 2009, the Municipality changed its policy to transfer construction in progress properly

concluded to other classification of capital assets. Origimlly, the Municipality used a certification
from Public Works. However, since 2009 and prospectively, the Municipality determines the

conclusion of a capital project if it is being used

When capital assets that are to be used in governmental activities are purchased or constructe4 the

resources expended for those assets are r€ported as expenditures in the governmental funds within the

capital outlays and included as additions in the roll-forward activity of the capital assets in the

government-wide Iinancial statement. However, in the statement of activiti€s, the cost of those assets

is allocated over the estimated useful lives and reported as a depreciation experse. As a result, fund

balance decreases by the capital outlays balance - the amount of financial resources expendd
whereas net assets decrease by the amount ofdepreciation expense charged for the year.

The amount by which capital outlays exceeded the depreciation expense for current year follows.
Also, the detail of th€se amounts is presented in the next table including the activity of the capital
assets.
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Depreciation expense

Capital outlays
Excess of depreciation expense
over capital outlays

Amount

$ 21,263,8\6

20,965,871

Capital assds not bcing d?rcciatd
I"ad and improvanenn

Consfudion in progress

Total not being &preciatd

Oth€r capihl assef

Buildings and impovemen$

EquiFnent

Total ofier capital assds

Accumulatd deprcciatioo

Building ad impmvexnenb

Equipment

Capihl assels, net

3,937,5y

fi4)27
34980

539)07

$___tll!l4l

(562,04E) 2,t33,4U

(562,048) 2.t33.4U

(a3,7n\

(423,7n)

__qIzrt

Brhnce

Jue 30, 2lll0

15293,L?i

44.021

l5J3?,151

183,070

42,W2

D5,IO

__n;rug!_

6.806.813

6,806,813

3,937,5y

Q,t33lU\ 4.613329

(2,133,484) 8,610,883

8,n1,690

35,741 8279
t3,751,438 8219

I02,533

1,|2
109,645

__910s,4/.7_

Pl"g "YT1yo., 
the Municipality sold two spaces of the multi-tenant buil.ring with a total square

foota^ge of1(406 square feet, by $1,666,575. The cost and accumulated depreciatlon of .*h prd"fly
was $562,048 znd $423,7%), respectively. The Municipality recordea $t,iX,:tZ as a ;6;*g
gain as a result of this transaction.

This Space Is Inteational$ Left Ia Blanh

$ (297,94s)

A summary ofthe activity of capital assets for business_type activities group follows:

Bsltnce

Junc 3l), 20(D

3,937,554

Addiliou Retircretrts Trrmfen
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Depreciation expense for capital assets of governmental activities was charged to the following
functions as follows:

Public works

Economic development

General govemment

Health and welfare

Public safety

Culture and recreation

Sanitation and environmental

Education

Housing

Taxable

Exempt
Exonerated

Net value

Real
Property

$ 6,908,4s8,026
(4sr,3s4,212)

(3,180,2145,153)

3,276,658,66t

Personal
Property

&1,411,t84
(2s9,018,920)

(4,626,s10)

377,765,754

Totel

7,549,869,210
(7r0,373,132)

(3,185,071,663)

3,6s4,424,41s

8,r48,502

5,071,319

3,912,044

3,581,446

272,712

141,652

132,140

3,660

141

Iaw numbe 7 of March 9, 2009, as amende4 known as law for Declaration of a State of Fiscal
Emerge.ncy, amended Property Tax law number 83 of August 30, 200 I . Such law established that for
fiscal years 2009-2010, 20l0-20ll, 20ll-2012" ard 2012-2013, the assessed valuation of the real
property will be determined in accordance with the regulations established under the Iaw No. 83

multiplied by ten (10) times. This amendment applies to those lscal years beginning after June 30,

2009. The tax rate applicable to the real property will be ddermine in accordance with the regulations
established under the l-aw No. 83 and will be reduced to one tenth (1/10).

Residential property owners are exonerated for the fiscal year 1992-1993 and subsequent years for an
amour up to S150,000 as per the provisions of the property tax law. For fiscal years 2009-2010,
2010-2011, 20ll-2012. afr 2012-2013, the exempt amount applicable to the residential property
owners will be increased to $150,000.

$ 21,263,816

7. GENERALLONG-TERMDEBT

The legal debt limit of the Municipality is equal to 10% of the total assessment of property located
within the Municipality. As of June 30, 2010 the Municipality has a margin amounting to
$241,618,955 Following are the assessed value ofreal and personal Fop€rty as ofJune 30, 2010:
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Qhanges in general long - term debt of governmental activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010
are summarized as follows:

Ioderal

Lornr

rDd Nohs Other [-orm

Ihe withir
om yeer

Balance at Jrrnc 30, 2009

Adjusxnenh

Paymetrb

New debt issucd

Balance at June 30, 2010

$ 115,180,680

75,882,000

191,062,680

(9,064,003)

29,785,000

6,555,000

6jri000
(1085,000)

96,058,500

(75,882,000)

20,176,500

(4,477,500)

2,240,W

217,794,t80

2t1,7%,t80

(t4,625,503)

32,025,000

As of June 30, 2010, debt service requiemorts for the above long-term debt are as follows:

Fiscal Year Principal

19,385,000

11,963,000

12,368,000

13,171,000

14,491,000

sl,741,027

56,514,000

34,101,000

19,783,650

1,675,000

$ 2|,783,677 5,470,000 17,939,000 235,192,677 19,385,000

Interest Total

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016-2020

202r-2025

2026-2030

203t-203s

203G2039

Total $ 235,192,677

9,260,752

13,226,72s

12,476,917

11,677,176

11,46,0,124

43,cf6,641

28,065,352

12,519,531

4,027,73t

62,813

14s,783,761

28,U5,752

25,r89,72s

24,844,917

24,848,176

25,951,124

94,747,668

84,579,352

46,620,531

23,811,381

1,737,813

380,n6,438

This Space Is Intenrtonally Lefi In Blank
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The following table presents the outstanding balance as of June 30, 2010 of the general obligation
bonds which were issued for capital project activities within the Municipality separate from those
issued for operational activities:

Description Balance

Issuence for canital oroiect activities:

$85,000 pyable in annual installrnents fiom $2,000 to $7,000 with
intercst rate at 5% mtil year 2014, secured by the Municipality. $ 23,000

$125,000 payable in amual installments of $5,000 with intercst rale

fluctuating from i.7o/o to 5.6V/. until year 2026, secured by the

MEicipalrty. 85,000

$283,000 payable in annual irstallments from $6,000 to $20,000 with
interest rate at 5% mtil year 2011, secued by the Municipality. 20,000

$1,870,000 payable in annual installments from $41,000 to $148,000
with int€rest rate at 6. I 3% until year 20 I I , secured by the Municipality.

$370,000 payable in annual installments from $5,000 to $25,000 with
intercst rate fluctuating from 2.53o/o lo 5.3lYo until year 2029, secured by

the Municipality.

$460,000 payable in annual installments from $10,000 to $35,000 with
inter€st rate flEtuating from 2.53% to 5.31% roatil yan 2029, secued by

the Municipality.

$500,000 payable in amual irstallments fiom $11,000 to $33,000 with
inter€st rate at 4.75% until year 2030, secured by the Municipality.

$580,000 payable in annual installments from $13,000 to M1,000 with
inter€st rate at 5% rmtil year 2015, secured by the Municipality. 186,000

S1,360,000 payable in annual installnrents from $20,000 to $115,000

with interest rate fluctuating from 2.7% to 5.6% until year 2026, secured

by the Municipality. 1,130,000

$1,575,000 payable in annual install,nents ftom $30,000 to $115,000

with int€rest rate fluctuating froI 2.3ff/o to 5.31 % until year 2028,

secured by the Municipality.

$1,610,000 payable in annual installments fiom $50,000 to $130,000

with iderest rate flwtuating ftom 4.17"/' to 5.28% until yw 2024,

secured by the Municipality.

1,375,000

148,000

330,000

410,000

,141,000
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. ]y', tes to Financial Statement

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Description Bdance

Issuence for caoital oroiect activities:

$1,6,10,000 payable in annual installrcnts from $37,000 to $ 107,000

with i erest rate at 4.5% mtil year 2030, secured by the Municipality. 1,439,000

$2100,000 payable in annual installnents from $62,000 to $177,000

with interest rate at 5.62% until year 2018, secured by the Municipality. 1,174,000

$2,695,000 payable in annual installments from $58,000 to $178,650

with inierest mte at 4.75% until year 2031, secured by the Municipality. 2,M5,650

$3,150,000 payable in annual instalLnents from $40,000 to $275,000

with interest rate fluctuatingfrom2.TYo to 7 .8lYo'mtrl yeu N24,
secured by the Municipality. 2,525,0N

$7J75,000 payable in a:rnual installrcnts from $215,000 to $605,000

n ith intercst rate fluctuatiry from I .36% to 5 54% until year 2026,

secured by the Mrmicipality. 6,890,000

$8,060,000 payable in annual installnsnts from $170,000 to $545,000

with interest rat€ fluctuating &om I .93% to 6% until year 203 I , secured

by the Municipality. 7,530,000

$9,845,000 payable in annual installments from $145,000 to $820,000

with interest rate fluctuating from 2.7% to 5.6% uotil year 2026, secured

by the Municipality. 8,330,000

$9,900,000 payable in aonual ifftallnents ftom $205,000 to $670,000

with intercst mte fluctuating from l.6l% to 5.02% until year 2028,

secured by the Municipality. 8,490,000

$9,910,000 payable in annual installneffs ftom M00,000 to $905,000

with interest rate fluctuatin gfromZ.43Yo lo 6.67/o until year 2028,

securcd by the Municipality. 8,165,000

$10,350,000 payable in annual insrallments from $305,000 to $755,000

with inter€st mte fluctuating ftom 2.7% to 7.8lYo wtilyear 20'26,

secr:red by the Mrmicipality. 8,060,000

$l1,015,000 payable in annual installm€nts from $315,000 to $875,000

with interest rate fluctuating from .52% to 5% until year 2025, secured

by the Municipality. 9,650,000

$l1,020,000 payable in arnual installments from $315,000 to $875,000

with interEst rate fluctuati\gfiom .32yo to 5o/o until year 2025, secured

by the Municipality. 9,645,000

$13,300,000 payable itr annual installments fron $355,000 to $l,315,000

with interest mt€ fluctuating from 4.8Tlo to 634% uotil ycar 2016,

secured by the Mruricipatity. 7,390,000
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D escription Behnce

Issu!nce for crpitrl Droiect activities:

$15,955,000 payable in annual installments from $345,000 to $1,505,000
with interest rate fluctuating from 4.70o/o to 8% until year 2015, secured by
the Mun icipality.

$7?6,000 payable in annual installments from $25,000 to $57,027 with
interest rate at 4.570 untilyear 2019, secured by the Municipality.

$624,000 payable in annual installments from $18,000 to $42,000 with
interest rate at 4.5yo until year 2030, secured by the Municipality.

$18,890,000 payable in annual installments from $415,000 to $1,785,000
with interest rate fluctuating from 5y. to'1.'716/0 until year 20l3, secured by

the Municipality.

$705,000 payable in annual installments from $10,000 to $60,000 with
interest rate fluctuating from 6y" to 7.5% until year 2034, secured by the
Municipality.

$2,255,000 payable in annual installments from $55,000 to $215,000 with
interest rate fluctuating from 6% t! 7.5ol. until year 2028, secured by the
Municipality.

$320,000 payable in annual installments from $5,000 to $30,000 with
interest rate fluctuatin g from 6% to 7 .5o/o until year 203 4, secu red by the

Municipality.

$725,000 payable in annual installmeots from $10,000 to $65,000 with
in terest ratc fluctuatin g from 6% to 7 .5y. until year 203 4, secured by the

Municipality.

$1,040,000 payable in annual installments from $15,000 to $90,000 with
intcrest rate fluctuating from 6% to 7.57o until year 2034, secured by the

Municipality.

$2,065,000 payable in annual irstallments from $35,000 !o $165,000 with

interest ratc fluctuating frcm 3.66yo to 6.41% until ye?J 2021, secured by

the Municipality.

$5,185,000 payable in arnual installments from $90,00 to $400,000 with

interest rate fluctuating from 3.66% to 6.41% until yeat 2027, secured by

the Mutricipality.

$15,385,000 payable in annual installments frorn $260,000 to $1,185,000

with irterest rate fluctuating from 3.650/. to 6.40o/o until year 2027, secured

by the Municipality.

$1,385,000 payable in annual installm€nts from $245,000 to $305,000 with

interest rate fluctuating from 3.59% to 4.50% until year 2010, secured by

the Municipality.

7,515,000

434,O2'1

58 7,000

6,380,000

705,000

2,25 s,000

320,000

725,000

1,fi0,000

I,? 15,000

4,295,000

12,?5 5,000

305,000
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D€scription Brlance

Issurnce for cspital projec't activities:

$10,015,000 payable in annual installments from $300,000 to $765'000

with interesl rate fluctuating from 5Y" to 5.58% until year 2025, secured by

the Municipality.

$8,575,000 payable in annual installments from $275,000 to S705,000 with

interest rate fluctuating from 6.48% to 7% until yeat 2024, secured by the

Municipality.

$10,075,000 payable in annual installments from $255,000 to $855,000

with interest rate fluctuating from 5.48o/" to 6.0'7% until year 2026, secured

by the Municipality.

S3,l85,OOO payable in annual installments from $60,000 to $230,000 with

inEresl rate fluctuating from 3.89 o/o to 5.82% until year 2032, secured by

the Municipality.

$500,000 payable in annual installments from $19,000 to $52,000 with

interest rate fluctuating from 1.53 yo to 7 .50% u,ntil year 2022' secured by

the Municipality.

$7,750,000 payable in amual installments from $290,000 to $675,000 with

the Municipality

$6,802,000 payabt€ in annual installments from $102,000 to $567,000 with

inErest rate fluctuating frcm l.53yo lo 7.50o/o until year 2033 secured by

the Municipality

$4,710,000 payable in annual insallments from $55,000 to $395,000 with

inlerest rate fluctuating fuom 4.75 yo lo 7.5o/. until year 2034, secured by

the Municipality.

Totsl issuruce for capitrl Project activiti€s

Isruence for oDerrtioDal sctivitiB:

$9,740,000 payable in annual installments from $145,000 to $815,000 with

interest rate fluctuatingfrorn 4.7 5Yo to 7.5% until year 2034, secured by

the Municipality.

$E,030,000 payable in annual installmsnts of $8,030,000.00 with irtsrest

ra:@ at 4.7 5yo until year 2Ol O, secured by the Municipality.

$2Op3O,OOO payable in annual installments from $295,000 to $1,675,000

with interest mte fluctuating from 670 to 7.5% until yeat 2035, secur€d by

the Municipality.
Total issuance for op€rationrl actiYities
Totrl general obligrtion bonds issuence

8,710,000

7,700,000

9,240,000

3,060,000

,161,000

7,150,000

6,700,000

4,710,000

s t73,9E3,677

9,740,000

8,03 0,000

20,030,000

$ 37,t00,000
$ 211,783,677
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Description Balance

$8 million payable in annual installments fluctuating from $200,000 to

$600,000 at 7.50% interest reate until year 2019, secured by building and

adjacent parking facility owned by the Municipality and appraised at an

aggregatd fair martet value of aprproximately $11.8 million' S 5,000,000

\?

The following table presents the outstandir:g balanse as of June 30, 2010 of the federal loans and

notes which were issued for capital project activities within the Municipality. None ofthese liabilities

were issued for op€rational activities:

Sec. 108 loans:

$1.4 nillion payable in annual installments fluctuating from $125,000 to

$270,000 at 6.570/o interest rate until year 2011, secured by public facilities

of the Municipality.

Totd federal loans rnd notes

This Space Is Intentionolly Lefi In Bla*

470,000

$ 5,470,000
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The following table presents the outstanding balance as of June 30, 2010 of loans which were issued
for capital project activities within the Municipality separate from those issued for operatioral
activities:

Description Balance

Issuance for capital oroiect activities:

$975,000 payable in annual installments from $105,000 to $170,000 with
interest rate fluctuating from 5% to 7.5% until year 20 1 6, secured by the

Mwricipality.

$255,000 payable in annual installments from $30,000 to $45,000 with
inter€st rate fluctuating from 5% to 7.5% until year 2016, secured by the

Municipality.

$1,010,000 payable in annual instalknents from $110,000 to $175,000 with
int€rest rate fluctuating from 6% to 7.5% rmtil year 2016, secured by the

Municipality.

$640,000 payable in annual installments from $80,000 to $105,000 with
interost rate fluctuating from 2.43 to 7.5% until year 2011, secured by the

Municipality.

$542,000 payable in annual instalhnents from $8,000 to $47,000 with

interest rate fluctuating from 1.53 o/o to 7 .5o/o txlil year 2033, secured by the

Municipality.

$8,770,000 payable in annual installrnents from $140,000 to $735,000 with
interest rate fluctuating fiom 1.53 %o to 7 .5Yo tlu:rtrl year 2033, secured by the

Mwricipality.

Total issuance for capital project activities

975,000

255,000

1,010,000

205,000

534,000

8,630,000

$ 11,609,000

Issuance for operational activities

$7,135,000 payable in annual installments from $805,000 to $1,255,000

with interest rate fluctuating from 1.53 o/oto 7.50o/o rmtil year 2015, secued

by the Municipality.
Total issuance for operational activities

Total loans issuance

6,330,000

$ 6J30p00

$ 17,939,000

57



Autonomous Municipality of Caguas
Notes n Financial Statement
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

2011

2012

2013

1,320

611

36

Long{erm debt for business-t1pe activities at June 30, 2010 is sumrnarized as follows:

Description Balance

Special bond obligation for $300,000 to provide for financing the

reconshuction and rehabilitation of housing project for citizens of
low and moderate income; annual intercst rate at 2% with maturity

on July 30, 2013, secured by the Municipality. '14,840 35,269

The debt service requirement for the long{erm debt of Enterprise funds is scheduled as follows:

Fiscel Year Principel Interest Totd

$ 35,269

35,978

3,593

$

E. Dt]E TO OTHER GOVERIIMENTAL ENTITIES

The Municipality has a long term debt balance with
summarized below:

Description Balance

74,8$

Municipal Revenue Collection Center as

1,967 76,W7

36,589

36,589

3,629

Due within
one vetr

Due within
one y€ar

tand Information Management System (LIMS), original issued in the

amount of $3,220,461 at 20 years with a semi-armual interest rate of

2.97500/.. 6tt,t76 401,450

Law No. 42 repayment plan" issued for $1,875,566 at 30 yean with a

semi-annual rate of 3.0938%. 1,667,480 35,il1

The Land lnforrration Management System is a digitalized system that maintains a register
containing the geogra.phical (location, boundaries, eE) and descriptive (proprietorship, area, assessed
values, etc) inventory ofall properties in Puerto Rico.
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The Iaw No. 42 dated January 2000, allows the Municipal Revenue Collection Ccnter (CRM) to
issue debt based on the disbursements made in excess to the municipalities on their final liquidation.
The municipalities engaged in an installment plan with the CRM to repay such amounts received in
excess prior to the fiscal year 2000.

The debt service requirement for the long{erm debt with the Mrmicipal Revenue Collection Center is

scheduled as follows:

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total

$ 2,278,656

9. OTHER NON CI]RRENT LIABILITIES

At June 30, 2010, the Municipality had the following accrued liabilities:

Bolance

Jure30,2.fll9 Additions Deductionr

2011

2012

20t3
2014

2015

201G2020

2021-2025

202G2030

2031-2032

Acarued compeosded atsefl ces

Accrued legal claims

$ 437,091

247,606

40,261

42,7m

45,479

274,021

371,628

s04,000

315,780

133,1l3

106,632

98,013

95,484

92,79s

417,346

319,741

187,36
29,903

570,2M

354,238

t38,274

138,274

138,274

691,367

691,369

691,366

345,683

1,480,393 3,759,049

B mcr Drc *ithin
Jme 30, 2010 otl€ yelr

$ 1rJ06,880 4,987 t4O
2322,51'1 67338r''

$ 13529,391 5,6fi,824

(1,550,000) 14,144,320

2995,901

| !s7 314

_gJam0l ___-!J4,022t_ _)!1!14 _

10. RETIREMENT PLAI\S

EmDlovee's Retiremetrt Svstem of the Government of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico

The Municipality participates in the Employee's Retirement System of the Government of the

Commonwealth of Puerto Rico (the System), a multiple-employer contributory retirement pla4 which
covers only eligible full-time errployees. The system provides retirement, death, and disability
benefits and arnuities to Commonwealth employees not covered by their own systems.
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Commonwealth legislation required employees to contribute 5.775%o for the first 5550 of theu
monthly gross salary and 8.275o/o for lhe excess over $550 of monthly gross salary. The Municipality
is required by the same statute to contribute 9.27 5%o of the parncipants' gross salary. On September
24, 1999,law No. 305 an amendment to Act No. 447 of May 15, 1991, which created the System,
was enacted with the purpose of establishing a defined contribution plan (System 2000). Employees
padicipating in the current system as of December 31,1999, may elect to stay in the defined benefit
plan or transfer to the new program. Persons joining on or after January 1, 2000 will only be allowed
to become members of the System 2000. System 2000 will reduce the retirement age from 65 to 60
for those employees who joined the current plan on or after April 1, 1990.

Systern 2000 is a hybrid defined contribution plan, also known as a cash balance plan. Under this new
plaq there will be a pool ofpersion assets, which will be invested by the System togetho with those
ofthe current defined benefit plan. The Commonwealth of Puerto fuco will not guarantee benefits at
retiremeut age. The annuity will be based on a formula which assumes that each year the employee's
contribution (with a minimum of 8.275% of the ernployees' salary up to a maximum of 10%) will be
invested in account which either; (1) eam a fixed rate based on the two year Constant Maturity
Treasury Note or, (2) eam a rate equal to 75% ofthe return ofthe System investment portfolio (net of
managernent fees), or (3) eam a combination of both alternatives. Participants will receive periodic
account statem€nts similar to those of defined contribution plans showing their accrued balances.
Disability pensions will not be granted under System 2000. The employer's contribution (9.275% of
the employee's salary) will be used to fund the current plan.

For the year ended June 30, 2010, total covered payroll was approximately $28.8 million. Covered
payroll refers to all compensation paid by the Municipality to employees covered by the System on
which contributions to the pension are based.

The amount ofthe amuity shall be one and one-half p€rcent of the average compensation multiplied
by the number of years of creditable service up to twenty years, plus two perc€nt of the average
compensation multiplied by the number of years of oeditabls service in excess of twenty years, for
those ernployees covered after March 31, 1990, the annuity shall be equal to one and one-half percent
of the average compensation multiplied by the number of years of creditable service, in no case shall
the annuity be less than $2,400.

Fundine Policv

Contribution requirements are established by law and are as follows:

Municipality
Employees:

Hired on or before March 31, 1990

Hired on or after April 1, 1990

9.275% of gross salary

5.775% ofgross salary up to $6,600
8.275% ofgross salary over $6,600

8.275% ofgross salary

Total ernployee conkibutions to the above-metrtioned plans during the year ended June 30, 2010
amounted to $2,382,610. The Mrmicipality's contributions during the years ended June 30,2010,
2009 and 2008 amounted to approximately $2,673,000, $2,696,000 and $2,873,000 respectively.
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These amounts represented 100% of the required conkibution for the corresponding years. The
Municipality complied with this required contribution percentage for the curre,trt and past two years.

Questions concerning any of the information provided in this disclosure or requests for additional
information should be addressed to the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico Govemment Employees and
Judiciary Retirement Systems Administratio4 437 Ponce de Le6n Avenue, Hato Rey, Puerto Rico
00918.

Retirement Platr ofEeed Start Food rnd Children Program

Effective January l, 2002, the Municipality created a retirernent plan (the Plan) for all employees of
those whose salaries were funded with the Head Start Food and Children Program federal financial
award and which have at least one year of service and are age twenty-one or olda. The Plan is part of
the Popular Master Defined Contribution Retirement. The Plan is subject to the provisions of the
Employee Retirernent Income Security Act of 1974 (ERISA).

The Municipality was required to contribute thrce percent (3Y) of the employees' annual
compensation. The Municipality complied with this required contribution percentage for the current
Fnd past two years. Participants may conkibute based on after tax contributions amounts representing
up to ten percent (10%o) ofthe aggregate compensation paid to the employee, excluding the Christmas
Bonus.

Participants are immediately vested il their
based on years of continuous service. The
accounts is described below:

Completed years of service

Less than 3 years

At least 3 years

At least 4 years

At least 5 yeals

At least 6 years

At least 7 years

The vesting provisions consider years of service before the employer established this Plan.

On termination of service due to deatfu disability or retirement, a participant or beneficiary may elect
to receive a lump-sum amount equal to the value ofthe padicipants' vested interest in his/her account,
or maintain the funds in the plan. Also, ten years annuities are allowed under the plan. The normal
retirement age is the latt€r ofthe date a participant attains his 65th birthday or the fifth anniversary of
the first day of the plan year in which hdshe commenced participation in the Plan. Early retirement
distributions are not permitted. Under the provisions of the Pla4 participants are not permitted to
withdraw any amount contributed by the employer from the pla4 unless separated from employment.

During the year ended June 30, 2010, the Municipality contributions to this plan amounted to
approximately $217,000, and for the years ended June 30, 2009 and 2008 contributed approximately
$ 1 79,000 for each year.

contributions plus actual eamings thereon. Vesting is
participant vesting schedule on such portion of their

Vested percent

0o/o

20%
40o/o

60%

80o/o

l00o/o
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Amount
$ 132,375

m,315

32,362

$ 255,052

Solid Waste Disposal Contrect

In January 1, 2010, the Municipality renewed the contract with E.C. Waste for the following five
years to provide the service for the recollection, malagement and disposal of solid wask. In the
contract it was established that the Municipality is corrmitted to pay E.C. Waste [nc. $ I 1.50 per unit
served applied to a starting minimum of45,500 units with annual increase ofone percent (l%) up to
fiscal year to be ended at January 1, 2014. Expenditure for the year ended June 30, 2010 for this
s€rvice amounts to $7.1 million, approlimafgly.

In addition, the Municipality is commi116d 16 pay an additional $25.00 per tons that the Municipality
transports and deposits in the E.C. Waste, Inc.'s center of recollection of such solid wastes for their
processing. The price ofthe rate is also subject to an annual ilcome increase of one percent (l%).

Contributions Not for Profits Coroorations

Iaw #137 of August 9"b, 2002, amended Article 17.001 and added Article 17.016 to the 1991

Autonomous Municipalities law No. 8l of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. This ametrdment
auttrorizes Municipalities "to be part of, participate, support and sponsor non-profit organizations
under the General I-aw of Corporatiors of 1995, as amende( and as long as it is organized to
promote economic and cultural development or social improvement of a municipality or region of
which the municipality is part of and the corporation counts with the participation and engagement
of, in addition of the municipalities, the different sectors composed of higher level educational
institutions and industrial and commercial enterprises, including associations grouping businesses
and industries. Mmicipalities' participation on the Board ofDirectors cannot exceed 1/3 of the total
members."

Under this Article the Municipality ofCaguas, participates in various forms with (1) Corporaci6n de
Bellas Artes de Caguas (COBAC); (2) Corporaci6n de Salud Aseguradora por Nuestra Organizaci6n
Solidaria, Inc. (SANOS); (3) Corporaci6n de Conservaci6n Etnoecol6gica Criolla, Inc. (CCECI); (4)
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1T. COMMITMENTS

Operating Leeses

The Municipality leases various prop€rties and equipment under operating lease agreements, which
generally have terms of one year or less and are automatically renewed if sufficient funds are
available. Lease ag:eements covering paiods in excess of one-year are cancelable at the
Municipality's option upon 30 days written notice to the lessor. Rental expenditures for the year
ended June 30, 2010 amounted to approximately 5282,584. Future op€rating lease commitments are
scheduled as follows:

Year
201I

20t2
20l3
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Iniciativa Tecnol6gica Centro-Oriental, Inc. (INTECO); and (5) Banco de Desarrollo Centro
Oriental, Inc. (BADECO).

On October 8, 2004 representatives ofthe Municipality and COBAC signed a 1s-year lease contract,
hansferring the operations of the Fine Arts Center (FAC) to COBAC effective July 1, 2004 for a
$1,000 armual rental fee payable to the Municipality. In addition, the Municipality is scheduled to
make annual contributions for 5 years at par with the commitments that €ach representative on the
Board has agreed to contribute. The contribution made by the Municipality to COBAC for the year
ended June 30, 2010 was $174,800. Subsequently, COBAC would obrain and provide the financial
resources n@essary for its operations from resources other than the Municipality. Finally, the
Municipality's represeltation on the Board ofDfuectors is 4 out of 17 mernbers, or 24olo of the voting
power.

On July 1, 2006 representatives of the Municipality and SANOS signed a 5-year lease contract for
the facilities where SANOS is currently located for a $l annual fee payable to the Municipality. ln
addition, the Municipality agreed !o contribute $300,000 annually for fiscal years 2006-2007 afr
2007 -2008 and pay for the utilities until June 30, 2009. More recently, on Decemb€r 1,2007 the
Municipality granted SANOS a contract for $35,000 (to be matched by SANOS) to administer
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds to develop and implement strategies to
promote and educate citizens about suicide. From there on, SANOS would obtain and provide the
financial resources necesury for its operations from resources other than the Municipality. Finally,
the Municipality occupies up to 1/3 of the Board of Director's seats.

On April 18, 2007 representatives of the Municipality and CCECI signed a l0-year lease contract for
the land and facilities comprising the Caguas Botanical and Cultural Garden for an annual fee of
S1,000 effective April 18, 2007. T"he Municipality agreed to contribute (1) operation funds for
$500,000 for each fiscal yar 2007 -2008 and 2008-2009; $350,000 for fiscal years 2009-2010 and
2010-2011; $300,000 for frscal yar 2011-2012; (2) payment of utilities corresponding to the land
and facilities included in the contract; (3) payrnent ofthe applicable insurance policies as the owner
ofthe land and facilities; and (4) remaining funds assigned to the development of the Garden in the
various dependencies/departments within the Municipality until June 30, 2007. From there on,
CCECI would obtain and provide the filancial resources necessary for its operations from resources
other than the Municipality. This contract was amended October 17, 2007 to provide CCECI an
additional $390,000 for the relocation and improvements of the Archeological tab and other
miscellaneous tasks. Finally, the Municipality's re.presentation on the Board of Directors does not
exceed the 1/3 of the total members.

On September 3, 2003 representatives of the Caguas and other Municipalities signed a contractual
agreernent with INTECO to contribute funds; property; social, human, physical and technological
capital fiom time to time. After the initial conkibution, each Municipality would contribute
approximately $1 per person annually according to the most recent Census available. The
Municipality of Caguas and NTECO have and will enter into contractual agreements for specific
projects from time to time. Finally, the Municipality's representation on the Board of Directors does
not exceed the 1/3 ofthe total members.

On August 21,2007 the Banco de Desarrollo de la Comunidad @DC) was incorporated as a non-
profit organization named BADECO. The plan is to expand BADECO regionally to 14 additional
Mrmicipalities. On July lst, 2010, the Municipality of Caguas successfully completed the
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transformation of the Community Dwelopment Bank into the first Regional Community Banl of
Puerto Rico by creating the Banco de Desarrollo Centro Oriental (BADECO). This new entity will
not only serve the residents and business located in Caguas but also the residents ofthe thirteen (13)
municipalities that encompass the region.

HousinE and Rental Coftracts

The Housing Choice Voucher Program (IICVP) provides rental assistance to help very low income
families afford decent, safe, and sanitary rental housing. The Mrmicipality as a local public housing
agency (PIIA) is authorized under Federal and State laws to operate housing programs within an area
or jurisdiction. The Municipality, as a PHA accqrts the application for rental assistancq selects the
applicant for admissioq and issues the selected family a voucher confirming the family's eligibility
for assistance. The family must then find and lease a dwelling unit suitable to the family's needs and
desires in the private rental market. The PIIA pays the owner a portion of the rent (a housing
assistance payment (HAP)) on behalfofthe family.

The subsidy provided by the HCVP is considered a tenanlbased subsidy because when an assisted
family moves out of a unit leased under the program, the assistance contract with the owner
terminates and the family may move to anoth€r unit with continued rental assistance (24 CFR section
982.1).

HUD enters into annual contributions cotrtracts (ACCs) with PIIAs under which the Department of
Housing and Urban Development (IIUD) provides funds to the PIIAs to administer the programs
locally. The PHAS enter into HAP contracts u/ith private owners who lease their units to assisted
familiss (lzt QFR section 982.151).

During the fiscal years ended June 30, 2010 and 2009, the Municipality has incurred in HAP's for
$6.8 million, in average. No significant changes are expected during subsequent fiscal year.

12. CONTINGENCIES

Litisation

The Municipality is a defendant in legal mafters that arise in the ordinary course ofthe Municipality's
activities. With respect to pending and threatened [tigatio4 the Municipality has reported liabilities
of S2,995,901 in the gov€mment-wide frnancial statements for anticipated unfavorable judgments or
future disbursements.

The amount presented in the total liabilities of the governmental activities in the statement of net
assets represents the amount estimated as probable liability, which will require future available
financial resources for its payment. The Municipality's adminishation and legal counsel believes that
the ultimate liability in excess of amounts provided would not be significant. In addition, the
Municipality is a defendant or co-defendant in several legal proceedings, which are in the discovery
stage- Certain of these claims are covered by insurance. Icgal counsel with the information currently
available cannot determine the final outcome of these claims. As a result, the accompanying general-
purpose financial statements do not include adjustmeDts, if any, that could result from the resolution
of tlese legal proceedings.
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Federal Financiel Assistance

The Municipality r*eives financial assistance from the federal government in the form of grants or
entitlements. The Municipality recognizes federal grant rwenues when the related grant agteernents
are approved and notified by the federal agencies by written communication. All grants are subject to
fimncial and compliance audits by the grantor agencies, which could result in requests for
reimburscment by the grantor agencies for expenditures, if disallowed under the terms of the grants.
These amounts, if any, of expenditures, which may be disallowed by the granting agencies, cannot be
det€rmined at tlris time. The Municipality's administration believes that such disallowances, if any,
will not have a material adverse effect on the financial position of the Municipality.

13. RISKMANAGEMENT

'Ihe Risk M,nagement Division of the Municipality is responsible for assuring that the Municipality's
property is properly insured. Annually, the Risk Management Division compiles the information of
all property owned and its respective market value. After evaluating this information regarding all the
property owned by the Municipality, this division submits the data to the Public Insurance Division of
the Departnent of the Treasury of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico who is responsible for
purchasing all property and casualty irsurance policies of all municipalities. Settled claims has not
exceeded the commercial coverage during the past tkee y€ars.

14. HEALTIICARE COSTS

During the year ended June 30, 2000, the Governor of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico required to
the municipalities of Puerto Rico an annual contribution to subsidy the cost of the imfrlementation and
administration of the Healthcare Reform. Such contributions are required to be disbursed from
general fund operating budget. Total contributions made by the Municipality amounted to
approximately $7,794,000 for the fiscal year urded June 30, 2010.

15. RESTATEMENTS

The Municipality has restated the beginning fund balances of funds financial stalements at July 1,

2009 to correct inter-fund amounts previously presented for which there were no detailed subsidiaries
to support such balances. Since these traDsactions receive the same accounting heatment in fund
financial statements as in government-widg the effect is the same il both financial statements.

This Space Is Intentionally Left In Blank
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The following tables summarize the effects of the situations mention above per column of the
financial staternant:

The Municipality restated the beginning net assets ofbusiness type activities to correct the following:

o Inter-fund amounts previously presented for which there were no detailed subsidiaries to support
such balances.

Correction of interlund transactions not suooorted bv subsidiaries
General fimd
Housing and rental program
Public residential administration
Head Start and Food and children program
Capital project fund
Legislative fund
Other govemmental fimd

Total

o Correction ofcapital assets based on subsidiaries.

Enterorise Funds

Community Development Bank
Correction of liability balance

Multitenant Buildinqs
Correction of interfund transactions not supported by subsidiaries

Total

Amount
$ 3,433,s72

202,232
(227,3s9)
556,028

(4,r14,33s)
1,fi5,144
1,764,235

s 3,219,517

Amount

149,325

370,781

$ 520,106

16. SUBSEQT ENT EVENTS

In preparing these financial statements, the Municipality has evaluated events and transactions for
potential recognition or disclosure through December 31, 2010, the date the financial staternents were
issued. Based on such analysis apnegement decided to disclose the following:

On July ls! 2010, the Municipality of Caguas successfully completed the transformation of the
Community Development Bank into the first Regional Community Bank of Puerto fuco by
creating the Banco de Desarrollo Centro Oriental (BADECO). This new entity will not only
serve the residents and business located in Caguas but also the residents of the thirteen (13)
municipalities that encompass the region.

On July 16, 2010 the Municipality entered into a refir:ancing process with the Housing and
Development Act of 1974, under section 108, Title I, as amended for the development of
economic and urban infrastructure projects. The refinance was for the amount of$4,600,000 ofa
guarantee loan. The new terms and conditions will permit to reduce the annual payments that
the Municipal Administration made.
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On July 16, 2010 the Municipality entered into a Inan Agreernent (the Agreement) with the
Governmental Development Bank of Puerto Rico (the Bank) for the refinancing of the
operational loan. The Agreement provides for borrowing in the amount of $8,105,000, including
finance charges, through July l, 2035 (the Maturity Date) and shall be known as 2010 Municipal
General Obligation Bonds, willbe issued as registered notes without coupons in denomination of
$5,000 with maturities of July I ofeach year tkough 2035. Borrowings will bear int€rest at an
annual rate which will not exceed the maximum interest rated authorized by law. Due interests
shall be paid semi-annual in January 1$ and July 1$ each year. The Municipality's good faith,
credit and its power to impose contributions will be compromised for the repayment of this
liability and will begin on January 2010. The Municipality will also pay legal, accounting, and
other fees and expenses in connection with the Loan Agreement.

On August 20, 2O1O the Municipality authorized to transf€r 100% of the Municipality
Development Fund to the Municipality Redemption Fund. law No. 64 state that the
municipalities contribute to the Redernption Municipal Fund an equivalent amount of50% of the
Municipality participation in the Municipal Development Fund. On June 21, 2010, it was
approved that some of the existent limitations for the sales and tax use (Vt) were eliminated
under the Intem Rent Code to the Municipal imposition. New dispositions under the law
authorized the municipalities to contribute to the Redemption Municipal Fund an amount
equivalent to the 100% ofthe Municipality participation in the Municipal Development F,rnd.

Effective on August 23, 2010, th€re was a new mayor il charge of the operations of the
Municipality. Former Mayor William Miranda Marin died on June 4, 2010. Following Miranda
Marin's death, his eldest son, William Miranda Torres quickly emerged as a candidate to
complete the current action plan. He maintained basically the same organizatiorvrl structure and
management staff that was previously in force being the fifth Caguas Mayor over the past five
decades.

On September 16,2010, the Municipality entered into a Loan Agreement (the Agreernent) with
the Govemmental Development Bark ofPuerto Rico (the Bank) for the acquisition of equipment.
The Agreernent provides for borrowing in the amount of $1,240,000, including finance charges,
through July 1, 2017 (the Maturity Date) and shall be known as 2010 Municipal General
Obligation Notes, will be issued as registered notes without coupons in denomination of $5,000
with maturities ofJuly I of each year tkough 2017. lsrr6wings will bear interest at an annual
rate which will not exceed the maximum interest rated authorized by law. Due interests shall be
paid serni-annual in January l"t and July 1$ each year. The Municipality's good faith, credit and
its power to impose conkibutions will be compromised for the repayment ofthis liability and will
begin on January 2010. The Municipality will also pay legal, accounting, and other fees and
expe ies in connection with the l,oan Agreement.

On October 22,2010, the Municipality entered into a Loan Agreement (the Agreement) with the
Govemmental Development lank of Puerto Rico (the Bank) for the construction and
improvements of various municipal works. The Agreernent provides for borrowing in the amount
of $2,2140,000, including finance charges, through July l, 2035 (the Maturity Date) and shall be
known as 2010 Municipal General Obligation Bonds, will be issued as registered notes without
coupons in denomination of 55,000 with maturities of July I of each year through 2035.
Borrowings will bear interest at an annual rate which will not exceed the rnaximum interest rated
authorized by law. Due interests shall be paid serni-annual in January l$ and July l$ each year.
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The Municipality's good faith, credit and its power to impose contributions will be compromised
for the repayment of this liability and will begin on January 20 1 0. The Municipality wili also pay
legal, accounting, and other fees and expenses in connection with the Ioan Agreement.

On Decernber 17, 2010, the Municipality entered into a Note Purchase Agreement (the
Agreement) with Santander Bank (the Bank) for the purposes ofproviding funds (i) to pay or a:ry
part of the cost of any public improvement or facility ofthe Municipality and (ii) to pay, on or
before their respective dates of maturity, the principal of any outstanding bonds or notes of the
Municipality, any premium for early redemption, and interest accrued or to be accrued on said
bonds or notes to the date of redemption; and the payment of the principal of, the premiur4 if
any. The Agreernent provides for borrowing in the amount of $3,525,000 on General Obligation
Notes, and S26,365,000 on General Refinancing Obligation with maturities dates of July I of
each year tbrough 2017. The unpaid principal balance of each Note sball bear interest from the
date of issuance until paid in full at an annual fluctuating rate of interest equal at all times to the
Applicable Rate in effect from time to time. Accrued interest on the unpaid principal balance of
each Note shall be payable on January 1$ and July l"r, 2011. The Notes are issuable as fully
registered notes without coupons, in denominalisns of not less 0nn $5,000 principal amount and
any integral multiple of 51,000 in excess thereof The Municipality's good faith, credit and its
power to impose contributions will be compromised for the repayment ofthis liability will begin
on January 201 1.

On December 22, 2010, the Municipality entered into a loan Agreement (the Agreement) with
the Governmental Development Bank of Puerto Rico (the Bank) for the payment of land
expropriation. The Agreernent provides for borrowing in the amount of $1,545,000, including
finance charges, through July 1, 2035 (the Maturity Dak) and shall be known as 2010 Municipal
General Obligation Bonds, willbe issued as registered notes without coupons in denomination of
$5,000 with maturities ofJuly I of each year through 2035. Borrowings will bear interest at an
annual rate which will not exceed the maximum interest rated authorized by law. Due interests
shall be paid semi-annual in January 1$ and July 1o each year. The Municipality's good faith,
credit and its power to impose contributions will be compromised for the repayment of this
liability and will begin on Jauuary 201 1 The Municipality will also pay legal, accounting and
other fees and expenses in connection with the Ioan Agreement.

On Decemb€r 22, 2010 the Municipality entered into a toan Agreement (the Agreement) with the
Governmental Development Bank ofPuerto Rico (the Bank) for the payment of a civil case. The
Agreement provides for borrowing in the amount ofs380,000, including fimnce charges, through
Jiliy 1,2017 (the Maturity Date) and shall be known as 2010 Municipal General Obligation
Notes, will be issued as registered notes without coupons in denomination of $5,000 with
maturities of July I of each year tkough 2017. Borrowings will bear interest at an annual rate
which will not exceed the maximum interest rated authorized by law. Due interests shall be paid
semi-annual in January 1" and July li each year. The Municipality's good fait[ credit and its
power to impose contributions will be compromised for the repayment of this liability and will
begin on January 2011. The Municipality will also pay legal, accounting, and other fees and
experu;es in connection with the Loan Ageement.

**r<**
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